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Results at a glance
Group

Company
2019
2018 Change
₦'000
₦'000
%

2019
₦'000

2018
₦'000

Change
%

Revenue

38,790,174

37,674,175

3

38,790,174

37,674,175

3

Profit/(loss) before taxation

10,712,401

(688,113)

1,657

10,751,065

(653,217)

1,746

Profit/(loss) for the year

7,294,847

(5,419,544)

235

7,341,314

(5,384,648)

236

Retained earnings

2,119,366

(5,175,481)

141

2,306,203

(5,035,111)

146

100,444,870

81,436,151

23

100,653,522

81,578,906

23

500,000

500,000

-

500,000

500,000

-

8,133,191

8,133,191

-

8,133,191

8,133,191

-

15,595,379

8,299,702

88

15,781,595

8,439,080

87

Total assets
Share capital
Share premium
Total equity
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Directors’ report
For the year ended 31 December 2019
The Directors present their report on the affairs of North South Power Company Limited ("the Company")
and its subsidiaries (together referred to as "the Group"), together with the financial statements and auditor’s
report for the year ended 31 December 2019.
Legal form
The Company was incorporated as a limited liability company on 15 March 2012. It owns 99% of Shiroro
Solar Generating Company Limited, which was incorporated as a limited liability company on 4 March 2015.
It also owns 99% of NSP-SPV Powercorp Plc and North South Gurara Energy Company Limited,
incorporated as public and private companies on 8 September 2017 and 25 July 2018 respectively.
Principal activities
The principal activities of the Company are to develop, own and operate power plants and other energy
infrastructure systems with a special emphasis on renewable energy systems including solar, electric, thermal,
wind and hydro power plants.
Shiroro Solar Generating Company Limited was established to carry on the Company's solar power
generation project through the generation license obtained by the Company in 2016. It is yet to commence
operations as at the year end. The unexpired life of the licence is 7 years.
NSP-SPV Powercorp Plc was established in 2017 as a special purpose vehicle for the purpose of issuing
bonds to fund capital expenditure, working capital, and enhance the liquidity of the Company or any other
Company as stipulated in the object clause.
North South Gurara Energy Company Limited (NSGEC) was incorporated in Nigeria on 25 July 2018.
NSGEC is yet to commence operations but was incorporated to provide power/ energy services, supply,
install and maintain renewable energy systems.
Concession arrangement
The Federal Government of Nigeria, as represented by the Ministry of Finance Incorporated through the
Bureau of Public Enterprises (BPE), transferred its rights to the operations, restoration and maintenance of
the hydroelectric power production facilities located on the Shiroro Reservoir and the related hydro property
of the Shiroro Hydroelectric Power Plant to the Company through a concession agreement. This concession
agreement was signed between BPE and the Company on 21 February 2013 for a period of thirty (30) years.
However, the Shiroro Hydroelectric Power Plant was officially handed over to the Company on 1 November
2013.
Business review
The Electric Power Sector Reform Act 2005 (Act No 6 of 2005) was established for the privatization and
transition of the Nigerian electricity market. As part of the Federal Government of Nigeria's (FGN) initiative
to transform the power sector, the Nigerian Electricity Regulatory Commission (NERC) was established
under the Electric Power Sector Reform Act 2005. NERC is Nigeria's independent regulatory agency for the
Nigerian electricity industry comprising generation, transmission and distribution sectors and regulates the
activities of the Company.
In line with the transition, the Company and other players in the Nigerian power sector operated under the
Interim Rules issued by the regulatory body - NERC. The Transitional Stage Electricity Market (TEM) with
its market rules was declared on 1 February 2015. However, the Bulk Power Purchasing Agreement (PPA)
with the Nigerian Bulk Electricity Trading Company (NBET), covering the terms upon which NBET is to
engage during the TEM in the bulk purchase and resale of electric capacity, electric energy and ancillary
services with the Company, was activated on 1 April 2016.
The Company, in accordance with the TEM rules, continues to generate electricity which is provided to
various electricity distribution companies (EDCs) through NBET.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

The Shiroro Hydroelectric Power Plant currently has a generating capacity of 600 mega-watts (MW).
Revenue is generated from billings for capacity made available and energy shared to the EDCs and is
represented by the monthly final settlement statements received from the Market Operator.
The total energy generated during the year was 2,646,356 MWh (2018: 2,480,620 MWh).
Deemed capacity during the year was 946,385 mega watts (MW) (2018: 1,060,699 mega watts (MW)). The
Company also earned revenue of ₦215 million (2018: ₦172.64 million) from black start services provided
during the year.
During the year, the Company was selected as the preferred bidder for the 30 mega watts Gurara hydroelectric
power plant after satisfying all the required conditions.In this regard, the Company obtained a bank guarantee
amounting to ₦239 million ($0.78 million) in favour of Federal Ministry of water resources.
On 28 February 2019, the Company through its subsidiary NSP-SPV PowerCorp Plc, issued its first ₦8.5
billion/15year/15.60% Series 1 Guaranteed Fixed Rate Senior Green Infrastructure Bond (“Series 1 Green
Bonds”), due 2034 under a ₦50 billion Debt Issuance Programme. The Series 1 Green Bonds is the first
certified green corporate bond and the longest tenured (15 years) corporate bond issued in the Nigerian debt
capital markets. The purpose of the bond is to raise funds to finance the Company's future rehabilitation and
expansion plans to increase the Company's contribution to Nigeria's power generation output by 2020. The
bonds issued were fully subscribed and paid in full.
Operating results and dividends
The following is a summary of the Group and Company’s operating results:
Group
2019
2018
In thousands of US Dollars
38,790,174 37,674,175
Revenue
10,712,401
(688,113)
Profit /(loss) before taxation
(3,417,554) (4,731,431)
Tax charge
Profit /(loss) after taxation
7,294,847 (5,419,544)

Company
2019
38,790,174
10,751,065
(3,409,751)
7,341,314

2018

37,674,175
(653,217)
(4,731,431)
(5,384,648)

The directors have proposed a dividend of $0.0078/₦1.64 (2018:Nil) per ordinary share of ₦1. This
amounts to a total dividend of ₦1.4 billion,$3.9 million for the year (2018: Nil).
Directors and their interests
The directors who served during the year were as follows:
Name
Nationality
Shareholder represented
Mallam Ibrahim Aliyu (Chairman)
Urban Shelter Limited
Engr. Olubunmi Peters (Managing Director)
BP Investment Limited
Mrs. Irene Chigbue
Engr. Ndanusa Sani Muhammed
Puma Engineering Limited
Pan - African Global Infrastructure Company
Dr. George Nwangwu
Limited
Engr. Emmanuel Katepa
Zambian
CEC Africa Hydro Investments Limited
Mr. Isaac Mate
Ghanaian
CEC Africa Hydro Investments Limited
Mrs. Rahmatu Mohammed Yar'adua
Niger State Development Company Limited
Mrs. Sa'adiya Aminu
Urban Shelter Limited
BP
Mr. Oladapo Peters
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

The interests of the directors in the issued share capital of the Company is as follows:
Number of Ordinary Shares of ₦1 each
2019
2018
Mallam Ibrahim Aliyu - through Urban Shelter Limited
97,758,690 97,758,690
Engr. Olubunmi Peters - through BP Investment Limited
79,905,405 79,905,405
- Opec Investment Inc
9,304,054
9,304,054
- Roads Nigeria Limited
912,162
912,162
Engr. Ndanusa Sani Muhammed - through Puma Engineering Limited
4,378,378
4,378,378
Dr. George Nwangwu - through Pan-African Global Infrastructure
8,209,459
8,209,459
Company Limited
Mr. Oladapo Peters - through BP Investment Limited
9,988,176
9,988,176
- Opec Investment Inc
8,939,189
8,939,189
Shareholding structure
The Company's shareholding structure as at year end is as follows;
31 December 2019
CEC Africa Hydro Investments Limited
Urban Shelter Limited
BP Investment Limited
Niger State Development Company
Transatlantic Investment and
Development Company LLC
Pan - African Global Infrastructure
Roads Nigeria Limited
Opec Investment Inc
Puma Engineering Limited
Olocorp Nigeria Limited

31 December 2018

No of shares
128,006,757
118,125,000
99,881,757
50,000,000

%
25.60
23.63
19.98
10.00

No of shares
128,006,757
118,125,000
99,881,757
50,000,000

%
25.60
23.63
19.98
10.00

26,452,703

5.29

26,452,703

5.29

26,452,703
18,243,243
18,243,243
7,297,297
7,297,297
500,000,000

5.29
3.65
3.65
1.46
1.46
100

26,452,703
18,243,243
18,243,243
7,297,297
7,297,297
500,000,000

5.29
3.65
3.65
1.46
1.46
100

Property, plant and equipment
Information relating to property, plant and equipment is disclosed in Note 14 to these financial statements.
Charitable donations
During the year, as part of the Company's social responsibility activities, the Company sponsored
rehabilitation of Gwada road project and other various activities in Shiroro communities. Total amount spent
was ₦307 million (2018: ₦12.5 million ). This was included in profit or loss as part of corporate social
responsibility. See Note 10 in the financial statements. In accordance with Section 38(2) of the Companies
and Allied Matters Act, Cap C.20, Laws of the Federation of Nigeria, 2004, the Company did not make any
donation or gift to any political party, political association or for any political purpose in the course of the
year under review (2018: Nil).
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Events after the reporting date
On 11 March 2020, the World Health Organization declared the coronavirus (COVID – 19) outbreak a
pandemic and most governments have taken restrictive measures to contain its further spread by introducing
lockdowns, closures of borders and travel restrictions which has affected the free movement of people and
goods. The Nigerian Centre for Disease Control (NCDC) has confirmed COVID -19 cases in Nigeria, a
situation that has resulted in lock down in certain States. The pandemic has caused a significant reduction in
social interactions, disruption in economic activities, shutdown in some certain public facilities have been
shut down in a bid to reduce the spread of the virus. The Group/ and Company consider this outbreak to be a
non-adjusting subsequent event.
There were no events after the reporting date which could have had material effect on the financial position
of the Group and /Company as at 31 December 2019 and on the profit for the year then ended which have not
been adequately accounted for or disclosed in these financial statements.
Committees
The Company had the following Board Committees during the year;
(a) Finance nominations and general purpose committee
The primary responsibility of this committee includes overseeing financial strategy, policy and treasury
matters; proposing and periodically reviewing the Company's financial policies, goals and draft
proposals as directed by the Board; reviewing and evaluating major capital expenditures; considering the
awards of contracts up to a limit as prescribed by the Board of Directors; developing budgets, financial
planning and financial reporting systems; monitoring adherence to the annual operating budget of the
Company and setting of long range financial goals along with funding.
Members of the Committee are;
Mallam Ibrahim Aliyu - Chairperson
Engr. Olubunmi Peters
Engr. Ndanusa Sani Muhammed
Dr. George Nwangwu
Engr. Emmanuel Katepa
(b) Technical and operations committee
The functions of this committee include proposing annual production targets; reviewing all the technical
and operational aspects of the Company's operations and future developments and making appropriate
recommendations to the Board of Directors; establishing the plans and criteria for achieving the
Company's operational and production success; periodically presenting an independent assessment of the
Company's annual operating and production plans for all existing and proposed power plants; and
reviewing major commercial agreements for engineering and maintenance activities planned for the
Company's plants and making necessary recommendations to the Board of Directors. Members of the
Committee are;
Mr. Isaac Mate
Engr. Emmanuel Katepa - Chairperson
Mr. Oladapo Peters
Engr. Olubunmi Peters
Mrs Sa'adiya Aminu
Engr. Ndanusa Sani Muhammed
(c) Remuneration and human resource committee
The functions of this committee include proposing the remuneration arrangements for the executive and
non-executive directors of the Company; proposing levels of employee remuneration within a specified
limit; developing qualification criteria for recruitment and placement of management and senior staff of
the Company; proposing incentive compensation plans, policies and programs; proposing policies for
motivation and retention of relevant skilled labour, employee restructuring and terminal benefit
packages. Members of the Committee are;
Mr. Oladapo Peters
Dr. George Nwangwu - Chairperson
Mrs. Irene Chigbue
Mrs. Sa'adiya Aminu
Mrs. Rahmatu Mohammed Yar'adua
Mr. Isaac Mate
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(d) Audit and risk management Committee
The major functions of the audit committee include overseeing the auditing process of the Company,
monitoring the integrity of the financial statements of the Company; maintaining oversight over the
auditing, accounting and financial reporting policies and processes; monitoring the performance of the
Company's internal controls, risk management and assurance function and the performance of the
internal audit function. Members of the Committee are;
Mrs. Rahmatu Mohammed Yar'adua
Mrs. Irene Chigbue - Chairperson
Mrs. Sa'adiya Aminu
Dr. George Nwangwu
Mr. Oladapo Peters
Engr. Emmanuel Katepa
(e) Safety Health and Environment (SHE) Committee
The primary functions of this committee include the development of a comprehensive SHE program for
the Company; proposing implementation modalities of SHE programs; and ensuring periodic reviews of
compliance with the Company's SHE policies. Members of the Committee are;
Engr. Ndanusa Sani Muhammed - Chairperson
Engr. Olubunmi Peters
Mrs. Rahmatu Mohammed Yar'adua
Mrs. Irene Chigbue

Mr. Isaac Mate

Employment and employees
(a) Employment of physically challenged persons
The Group has no physically challenged employees. However, applications for employment by
physically challenged persons are always fully considered, bearing in mind the respective aptitudes
and abilities of the applicants. In the event of members of staff becoming physically challenged,
every effort is made to ensure that their employment with the Group continues and that appropriate
training is arranged. The training, career development and promotion of physically challenged
persons should, as far as possible, be identical to those of other employees.
(b) Employee health, safety and welfare
The Group places a high premium on the health, safety and welfare of its employees in their place
of work. The Group's policy includes having various forms of insurance policies to secure and
protect its employees. In addition, it operates on-site medical facilities and services for immediate
attention to employees as may be necessary in the course of operations.
(c)

Employee consultation and training
The Group places considerable value on the involvement of its employees in major policy matters
and maintains a practice of keeping them informed on matters affecting them as employees, and on
the various factors affecting the performance of the Group through formal and informal meetings.
Employees receive on-the-job training, complimented where necessary with additional facilities
from training institutions.
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Other technical and financial information
A The Nigeria Electricity Market Stabilization Facility (NEMSF) was an intervention fund by the Central
Bank of Nigeria (CBN) to pay the debts owed the generation companies (GENCOs) by power
distribution companies (DISCOs) during the Interim Rules Period. The disbursed funds will be repaid by
the DISCOs and do not represent a liability to the Company.
As at year end, a cumulative amount of ₦7.21 billion (2018: ₦7.21 billion) has been received from the
CBN-NEMSF since its inception. The funds received have reduced the indebtedness of the DISCOs to
the Company and have been utilised for the operation and maintenance of the Shiroro Hydroelectric
Power Plant.
B

On 22 March 2017, the Federal Executive Council (FEC) approved the Power Sector Recovery
Programme (“PSRP”). The PSRP was jointly developed by the Federal Government of Nigeria and the
World Bank, and involves a series of power sector focused policy actions, operational, governance and
financial Interventions to be implemented by the Federal Government of Nigeria between 2017 – 2021.
One of the financial interventions which has commenced is the ₦701 billion Payment Assurance
Guarantee Facility ("PAG") which guarantees generation companies a minimum of 80% payment of
invoices for electricity taken up by the Nigerian Bulk Electricity Trading Company (NBET) (excluding
deemed capacity) commencing from the January 2017 invoice over the next two years. During the year,
receipts from the PAG amounted to $38.67 million (₦11.87 billion) (2018: $36.69 million; ₦11.26
billion).
In May 2019, the FEC approved another financial intervention - the ₦600 billion Payment Assurance
Facility Expansion (NBET-PAF-XP) loan. The loan guarantees generation companies a full payment of
invoices for electricity taken up by the Nigerian Bulk Electricity Trading Company (NBET) (excluding
deemed capacity) commencing from January 2019 - March 2020. One of the conditions precedent to
the disbursement of this facility is the verification and agreement on the outstanding electricity bills
between NBET and the generation companies. In order to meet this condition, during the last quarter of
the year, NERC ordered an industry wide reconciliation of outstanding amount of electricity bills from
NBET to all generation companies, including all applicable interest on electricity bills that were not paid
by NBET within the contractual period stipulated in the PPA. All operators were further directed to
submit their reconciliations to NERC. The Company commenced its reconciliation exercise with NBET
in November 2019 and submitted its reconciliation to NERC in the first quarter of 2020.
Subsequent to year end, the Company received ₦10.3 billion for full settlement of all electricity bills to
NBET from January 2019 - September 2019. As at year end, the outstanding trade receivable balance in
respect of electricity billings amounted to ₦75.1 billion, $244.5 million, (2018:₦ 19.3 billion, $64.9
million, ).

C

In accordance with provisions of the Concession Agreement, the following provisional information have
been disclosed:
(a) The Company's ability to meet its financial obligations are dependent on its ability to collect
revenues from its sales. Though, in the opinion of the Board of Directors, no regulatory or
contractual breach has been noted for the months of operation, the liquidity challenges in the
market have had a big impact on the Company’s ability to collect all its revenues from its electricity
sales.
(b) As at year end, the Company had 299 (2018: 341) personnel in its employment carrying out the
business operation of providing electricity to various distribution companies through its sole
customer, NBET.
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(c)

The Company previously sold power to eleven distribution companies and two international
customers through the Operator of Nigerian Electricity Trading Company (ONEM). From Febmary
2015, the Company sold power to these distribution companies and international customers through
the Nigerian Bulk Electricity Trading Company (NBET) and this arrangement continued on the
activation of the PPA on l April 2016. ln 2017. the Company repaired the water intake gate of Unit
4 turbine which led to the recovery of 150MW generation capacity restoring the plant to its
nameplate capacity of 600MW. No major breakdown of the power plant was reported during the
year.
(d) The Company had no exceptional health, safety or environmental issues. There were also no
fatalities, lost time accidents and environmental incidences that were recorded.
There
were no emergencies experienced.
(e)
(I) All standing mies and regulations on environmental issues were observed.

Independent auditor

Messrs. KPMG Professional Services served as the independent auditor during the year under review. KPMG
Professional Services in accordance with the existing regulation, which limits the tenure of the independent
auditor to five years, will not continue in office as the Company's independent auditor after the conclusion of
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. ln accordance with Section 357 (2) of the Companies and
Allied Matters Act, Cap C.20, Laws of the Federation of Nigeria, 2004, the Board will propose at
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, the appointment of another firm as the independent auditors
to the Company effective after the conclusion of the meeting.
Abuja, Nigeria
2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Shareholders of North South Power Company Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

Opinion
We have audited the consolidated and separate financial statements of North South Power Company
Limited (“the Company”), and its subsidiaries (together “the Group”) which comprise the consolidated
and separate statements of financial position as at 31 December 2019, and the consolidated and
separate statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated and separate
statements of changes in equity and the consolidated and separate statements of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes, comprising significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, as
set out on pages 18 to 76.
In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated and separate financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated and separate financial position of the Company and its subsidiaries as at 31
December 2019 and of its consolidated and separate financial performance and its consolidated and
separate cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) and in the manner required by the Companies and Allied Matters Act, Cap C.20, Laws
of the Federation of Nigeria, 2004 and the Financial Reporting Council of Nigeria Act, 2011.
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the consolidated and separate Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Group and Company in accordance with International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants'
International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence
Standards) (IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
consolidated and separate financial statements in Nigeria and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters
below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Partners:
Adebisi O.. Lamikanra
Lam ik
Adewale K. Ajayi
Ayodele A. Soyinka
Elijah O. Oladunmoye
Joseph O. Tegbe
Nneka C. Eluma
Olanike I. James
Oluwafemi O. Awotoye
Victor U. Onyenkpa

Adegoke A. Oyelami
Ajibola O. Olomola
Ayodele H. Othihiwa
Goodluck C. Obi
Kabir O. Okunlola
Oguntayo I. Ogungbenro
Olumide O. Olayinka
Oluwatoyin A. Gbagi

Adekunle A. Elebute
Akinyemi Ashade
Chibuzor N. Anyanechi
Ibitomi M. Adepoju
Lawrence C. Amadi
Olabimpe S. Afolabi
Olusegun A. Sowande
Temitope A. Onitiri

Adetola P. Adeyemi
Ayobami L. Salami
Chineme B. Nwigbo
Ijeoma T. Emezie-Ezigbo
Mohammed M. Adama
Oladimeji I. Salaudeen
Olutoyin I. Ogunlowo
Tolulope A. Odukale

Impairment on Trade receivables
Refer to significant accounting policies Note 7(f) and Note 18 and 34(a) of the consolidated and separate
financial statements.
As at 31 December 2019, the Group and Company had a trade receivable balance of ₦28.63 billion as
disclosed in Note 18 to the financial statements. These receivables are due from the Nigerian Bulk
Electricity Trading Plc (NBET).
Under IFRS 9, the Group and Company are required to recognize a loss allowance for expected credit
losses (ECLs) on financial assets (including receivables due from NBET) measured at amortised costs.
The ECLs are estimated based on the Group and Company’s historical loss experience and informed
credit assessment together with forward looking information.
There are concerns over the Group and Company’s ability to recover the outstanding receivables due to
the liquidity constraints currently facing the Nigerian Power Sector as well as the fact that the settlement
pattern for these receivables has been very inconsistent. Accordingly significant judgement is required in
estimating the ECLs for NBET.
The application of the IFRS 9 ECL model on the impairment of trade receivables is considered a key audit
matter due to the significance of the amounts involved and the judgment exercised by the Directors.

How the matter was addressed in our audit:
Our audit procedures included the following;
•
•
•
•

Assessed the ECL modeling techniques and methodology used by the Group and the Company
against the requirements of IFRS 9.
Recomputed the impairment allowance and compared the outcome of our recomputation to the
amount recognized by the Group and Company, in order to evaluate the adequacy of the impairment
allowance recorded by the Group and Company.
Challenged key assumptions applied in the impairment of financial assets by comparing the
assumptions to our expectations based on knowledge of the Company, industry, relevant market
parameters and other externally derived data.
Assessed the categorisation of the Group and Company’s receivables for the purpose of ensuring
that outstanding receivables are correctly classified based on their different credit risk characteristics
and their identified settlement patterns.

Payment obligations under the concession agreement
Refer to concession fee payable Note 29(a) of the consolidated and separate financial statements.
The Company has obligation for fees payable under the concession agreement which remained unpaid as
at 31 December 2019.
In accordance with the terms of the concession agreement, non-settlement of the payment obligations
outlined in the agreement could result in an event of default by the Company, subject to the
interpretation of certain contractual terms and conditions required to be met by the counterparty. The
occurrence of an event of default can result in any of the counterparties terminating the Concession
Agreement.
The first and second installments of the annual concession fee obligation under the Concession
Agreement relating to the Shiroro Hydro Electric Power Plant Nigeria, amounting to ₦ 14.9 billion fell due
for payment on 1 November 2019, but has remained unpaid as at the date of our audit report.
In addition, royalty fees amounting to ₦ 2.8 billion remained unpaid as at year end and up to the date of
our audit report.
The interpretation of an event of default and other relevant clauses and conditions in the agreement is an
area of significant judgement made by the Company with stringent consequences for the Company such
as termination of the concession agreement by any of the parties to the agreement. It is therefore
considered a key audit matter due to the significance of the amounts involved and the judgement
exercised by the Directors of the Company.

How the matter was addressed in our audit:
Our audit procedures included the following;
•
•
•
•
•

We inspected correspondence between NSP, and the other relevant counter party. We also
reviewed the Concession Agreement to check the claims of management that the Group/Company is
not in default.
We challenged management’s conclusion by requesting for an independent legal opinion to support
management’s conclusion that the Company’s failure to pay the concession fee is not an event of
default because it is a consequence of the counter parties’ event of default.
We reviewed the independence, competence and capability of the third party (external solicitor) that
provided the legal opinion to the Directors.
We evaluated the judgement and assumptions made by the third party in arriving at it’s opinion, using
our own understanding of the terms of the Concession Agreement, and our knowledge of the
Company and its industry.
We evaluated the appropriateness of the disclosures made by the Directors in the financial
statements with respect to its payment obligations under the Concession agreement.

Other Information
The Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the corporate
information, Results at a glance, Directors' report, Report of the Audit and Risk Committee, Statement of
directors' responsibilities and Other national disclosures but does not include the consolidated and
separate financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.
Our opinion on the consolidated and separate financial statements does not cover the other information
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information identified above and in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated and separate financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated and separate financial statements
that gives a true and fair view in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), and
in the manner required by the Companies and Allied Matters Act, Cap C.20, Laws of the Federation of
Nigeria, 2004 and the Financial Reporting Council of Nigeria Act, 2011 and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the consolidated and separate financial statements, the directors are responsible for
assessing the Group and Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group and Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated and separate Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated and separate financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
•

•
•
•

•

•

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated and separate financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group and Company's internal control.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.
Conclude on the appropriateness of directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group and Company's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated and separate financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group and Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated and separate financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated and separate financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.
Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit and Risk committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.
From the matters communicated with the Audit and Risk committee, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Compliance with the requirements of Schedule 6 of the Companies and Allied Matters Act, Cap C.20,
Laws of the Federation of Nigeria, 2004
In our opinion, proper books of account have been kept by the Company, so far as appears from our
examination of those books and the Company’s statement of financial position and statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income are in agreement with the books of account.
Signed:

Chibuzor N. Anyanechi, FCA
FRC/2013/ICAN/00000000789
For: KPMG Professional Services
Chartered Accountants
29 July 2020
Lagos, Nigeria
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Consolidated and separate statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 December
Group
In thousands of Naira
Revenue
Direct costs
Gross profit
Impairment loss on trade receivables
General and administrative expenses

Notes
9
10

34(a)
10

Operating profits
Finance income

11

Unwinding of discount on concession
fees
Other finance costs
Finance costs

11
11

Net finance costs
Profit/ (loss) before taxation
Tax charge

12
13(a).

Profit/(loss) for the year

Company

2019

2018

2019

2018

38,790,174
(5,213,751)

37,674,175
(4,948,106)

38,790,174
(5,213,751)

37,674,175
(4,948,106)

33,576,423

32,726,069

33,576,423

32,726,069

(8,254,030) (20,157,297)
(6,898,324) (4,552,626)

(8,254,030)
(6,855,264)

(20,157,297)
(4,517,730)

18,424,069

8,016,146

18,467,129

8,051,042

1,862,208

290,795

1,857,386

290,795

(6,991,952)

(7,006,629)

(6,991,952)

(7,006,629)

(2,581,924)
(9,573,876)

(1,988,425)
(8,995,054)

(2,581,498)
(9,573,450)

(1,988,425)
(8,995,054)

(7,711,668)

(8,704,259)

(7,716,064)

(8,704,259)

10,712,401
(3,417,554)

(688,113)
(4,731,431)

10,751,065
(3,409,751)

(653,217)
(4,731,431)

7,294,847

(5,419,544)

7,341,314

(5,384,648)

830

2,402,086

1,201

2,403,700

830

2,402,086

1,201

2,403,700

7,295,677

(3,017,458)

7,342,515

(2,980,948)

7,294,847
7,294,847

(5,419,544)
(5,419,544)

7,341,314
7,341,314

(5,384,648)
(5,384,648)

7,295,677
7,295,677

(3,017,458)
(3,017,458)

7,342,515
7,342,515

(2,980,948)
(2,980,948)

Other comprehensive income
items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
Foreign currency translation differences
24
Other comprehensive income for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit/(loss) attributable to:
Equity owners of the parent
Non-controlling interest

25

Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity owners of the parent
Non-controlling interest
25

The notes on pages 23 to 76 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Separate statement of changes in equity
Share
capital

Share
premium

Retained
earnings

Translation
reserve

Total equity

Balance as at 1 January 2018
Impact of adoption of IFRS 9
Adjusted balance at 1 January 2018

500,000
500,000

8,133,191
8,133,191

18,822,709
(8,473,172)
10,349,537

6,665,865
(4,228,565)
2,437,300

34,121,765
(12,701,737)
21,420,028

Comprehensive income for the year
Loss for the year
Other comprehensive income

-

-

(5,384,648)
-

2,403,700

(5,384,648)
2,403,700

Total comprehensive income for the year

-

-

(5,384,648)

2,403,700

(2,980,948)

Transactions with owners of the Company
Dividend (See Note 29(b))
Balance as at 31 December 2018

-

-

(10,000,000)

-

500,000

8,133,191

(5,035,111)

4,841,000

(10,000,000)
8,439,080

Share
capital

Share
premium

Retained
earnings

Translation
reserve

Total equity

500,000

8,133,191

(5,035,111)

4,841,000

8,439,080

-

-

7,341,314
-

1,201

7,341,314
1,201

-

-

7,341,314

1,201

7,342,515

500,000

8,133,191

2,306,203

4,842,201

15,781,595

For the year ended 31 December 2018
In thousands of Naira

For the year ended 31 December 2019
In thousands of Naira
Balance as at 1 January 2019

Comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income for the year
Balance as at 31 December 2019

The notes on pages 23 to 76 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity
Share
capital

Share
premium

Retained
earnings

Translation
reserve

Total

Noncontrolling
interest

500,000
500,000

8,133,191
8,133,191

18,717,235
(8,473,172)
10,244,063

6,668,471
(4,228,565)
2,439,906

34,018,897
(12,701,737)
21,317,160

-

34,018,897
(12,701,737)
21,317,160

Comprehensive income for the year
Loss for the year
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income for the year

-

-

(5,419,544)
(5,419,544)

2,402,086
2,402,086

(5,419,544)
2,402,086
(3,017,458)

-

(5,419,544)
2,402,086
(3,017,458)

Transaction with owners of the Company
Dividend (See Note 29 (b))
Total transactions with owners of the Company

-

-

(10,000,000)
(10,000,000)

-

(10,000,000)
(10,000,000)

-

(10,000,000)
(10,000,000)

500,000

8,133,191

(5,175,481)

4,841,992

8,299,702

-

8,299,702

Share
capital

Share
premium

Retained
earnings

Translation
reserve

Total

Noncontrolling
interest

Total

500,000

8,133,191

(5,175,481)

4,841,992

8,299,702

-

8,299,702

-

-

7,294,847
7,294,847

830
830

7,294,847
830
7,295,677

7,294,847
830
7,295,677

500,000

8,133,191

2,119,366

4,842,822

15,595,379

-

For the year ended 31 December 2018
In thousands of Naira
Balance as at 1 January 2018
Impact of adoption of IFRS 9
Adjusted balance at 1 January 2018

Balance as at 31 December 2018
For the year ended 31 December 2019
In thousands of Naira
Balance as at 1 January 2019
Comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income for the year
Balance as at 31 December 2019

N
o

Total

15,595,379

The notes on pages 23 to 76 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated and separate statements of cash flows
For the year ended 31 December
Group
In thousands of Naira

2019

2018
Restated*

2019

2018
Restated*

7,294,847

(5,419,544)

7,342,515

(5,384,648)

125,946
1,900,067
6,520,026
3,417,554
85,714
8,254,030
27,598,184

99,176
1,837,824
8,692,963
4,731,431
20,157,297
30,099,147

125,946
1,900,067
6,524,422
3,409,751
85,714
8,254,030
27,642,445

99,176
1,837,824
8,692,654
4,731,431
20,157,297
30,133,734

(21,177)
(18,192,841)
(1,649,081)
(93,918)
(1,785,047)
5,856,120

(52,343)
(7,941,458)
(253,889)
(1,531)
266,001

(52,343)
(7,978,497)
(253,889)
(1,531)
269,368

22,115,927

(21,177)
(18,268,519)
(1,649,081)
(93,918)
(1,757,117)
5,852,632

22,116,842

13(c )

(317,969)
5,538,151

22,115,927

(317,969)
5,534,663

22,116,842

14

(388,868)

(505,677)

(388,868)

(505,677)

-

4,285

-

4,285

(1,091,101)
1,862,208

(816,675)
290,795

(1,091,101)
1,857,386

(816,675)
290,795

382,240

(1,027,272)

377,418

(1,027,272)

(1,832,312)
8,500,000

(7,389,560)
-

(1,832,312)
8,500,000

(7,389,560)
-

(191,884)
(5,270,269)
(853,153)
(358,221)

(3,185,583)
(1,258,989)
(86,626)

(191,884)
(5,270,269)
(853,153)
(357,795)

(3,185,583)
(1,258,989)
(86,626)

Notes

Operating activities
Profit/(loss) for the year
Adjustments for:
- depreciation of property, plant and equipment 14
- amortization
15
- finance costs
11(a)
- taxation
13(a)
- provisions
30
- impairment loss on trade receivables
34(a)
Changes in:
- inventories
- trade and other receivables
- other assets
- prepayments
- trade and other payables
Cash generated from operating activities
Income taxes paid
Net cash from operating activities
Investing activities
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and
equipment
Acquisition of intangible assets
Interest received
Net cash generated from/(used in) investing
activities

17( a)
18( d)
19( a)
20( a)

29(d)

15

11

Financing activities
Dividend paid to shareholders
29(d)
Loan received
27
Transaction costs related to loans and
borrowings paid
27
Principal repayment
27
Interest payments
27
Bank charges paid
11
Net cash generated from/(used in) financing
activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of
the year
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and
cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the
year

Company

21

(5,839)

(11,920,758)

(5,413)

(11,920,758)

5,914,551

9,167,897

5,906,668

9,168,812

10,105,519

1,757,664

10,104,598

1,755,828

1,687

(820,042)

(258)

(820,042)

16,021,757

10,105,519

16,011,008

10,104,598

* See Note 35
The notes on pages 23 to 76 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the financial statements
1. Reporting entity
North South Power Company Limited ("the Company") was incorporated on 15 March 2012 as a limited
liability company.
The Company operates in the power sector and its principal activity is to develop, own and operate power
plants and other energy infrastructure systems with a special emphasis on renewable energy systems
including solar, electric, thermal, wind and hydro power plants.
The Company owns 99% of Shiroro Solar Generating Company Limited, which was incorporated as a
limited liability company on 4 March 2015. It also owns 99% of NSP-SPV Powercorp Plc and North
South Gurara Energy Company Limited, incorporated as public and private companies on 8 September
2017 and 25 July 2018 respectively.
Shiroro Solar Generating Company Limited was established to carry on the Company's solar power
generation project through the generation license obtained by the Company in 2016. It is yet to commence
operations as at the year end.
NSP-SPV Powercorp Plc was established in 2017 as a special purpose vehicle for the purpose of investing
in bonds, notes, shares, stocks, debenture stock, annuities or other securities (for itself or on behalf of any
person(s), corporate or incorporate), issued, sold or sponsored by the Company.
During the year, on 28 February 2019, the Company through its subsidiary NSP-SPV Powercorp Plc,
issued its first N8.5 billion/15 year/15.60% Series 1 Guaranteed Fixed Rate Senior Green Infrastructure
Bonds (“Series 1 Green Bonds”), due 2034 under a N50 billion Debt Issuance Programme. The Series 1
Green Bonds is the first certified green corporate bond and the longest tenured (15 years) corporate bond
issued in the Nigerian debt capital markets. The purpose of the bonds is to raise funds to finance the
Company's future rehabilitation and expansion plans to increase the Company's contribution to Nigeria's
power generation output by 2020. The bonds issued were fully subscribed and paid in full.
North South Gurara Energy Company Limited was incorporated in Nigeria on the 25 July 2018. NSGEC is
yet to commence operations but was incorporated to provide power/ energy services, supply, install and
maintain renewable energy systems.
The Group/ and Company has its operating base at the Shiroro Hydroelectric Plant, Niger State while its
registered/ business office is as follows:
Clan Place, Plot No 1386, Tigris Crescent
Maitama, Abuja Nigeria
2. Basis of accounting
The financial statements of the Group and/ Company have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB)
and in the manner required by the Companies and Allied Matters Act Cap C.20, Laws of the Federation of
Nigeria, 2004 and the Financial Reporting Council of Nigeria Act, 2011.
The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on
28 July 2020.
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Notes to the financial statements
This is the first set of the Group and Company's annual financial statements in which IFRS 16 Leases has
been applied. The related changes to significant accounting policies are described in Note 6.
3. Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared under the going concern assumption and historical cost basis
unless for otherwise indicated.
4. Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements have been presented in Nigerian Naira (₦). The Company's functional currency
is US Dollar($). All financial information presented in Nigerian Naira (₦) has been rounded to the nearest
thousand (₦‘000), unless otherwise indicated.
Translation to the presentation currency
The Group and/or Company’s functional currency (US Dollar) is different from the presentation currency
(Nigerian Naira). The results and financial position of the Group and/orCompany are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:
- assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that statement of financial position;
- income and expenses for each statement presenting profit or loss and other comprehensive income are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case, income and expenses are translated at the
dates of the transactions);
- cash flows are translated at average exchange rate.
All resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate component of equity through other
comprehensive income.
5. Use of estimates and judgments
In preparing these consolidated financial statements, management has made judgments and estimates that
affect the application of the Group's accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized prospectively.
(a) Judgements
Information about judgements made in applying in accounting policies that have most significant
effects on the amounts recognised in the financial statements is included in the following notes:
Note 6(b) - lease term: whether the Group is reasonably certain to exrecise extension options.
Note 18(e) - Disclosure of unrecognized interest income on receivables not collected within the credit
Note 28(a) - Compliance with payment obligations under the concession agreement.
(b) Assumptions and estimation uncertainties
Information about assumptions and estimations uncertainties at 31 December 2019 that have a
significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets and
liabilities in the next financial year is included in the following notes:
Note 26 – Recognition of deferred tax assets: availability of future taxable profit against which
deductible temporary difference and tax losses carried forward can be utilised;
Note 30 and 32 – Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies: key assumptions
about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources;
Note 34(a) – Measurements of ECL allowance for trade receivables: key assumptions in determining
the weighted average loss rate.
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Notes to the financial statements
i.

Measurement of fair values
A number of the Group and/or Company's accounting policies and disclosures require the
measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.
The Group and/or Company's has established control framework with respect to the measurement of
fair values. This includes the General Manager Finance and Accounts that has overall responsibility
for overseeing all significant fair value measurements including Level 3 fair values.
The General Manager Finance and Accounts regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and
valuation adjustments. If the third party information, such as broker quotes or pricing services, is used
to measure fair values, then the General Manager Finance and Accounts assesses the evidence
obtained from third parties to support the conclusion that these valuations meet the requirements of
the Standards, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which the valuations should be
classified. Significant valuation issues are reported to the Group and/or Company's audit committee.
When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group and/ Company's uses observable
data as far as possible. Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based
on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows;
* Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
* Level 2: input other than quoted prices included in level 1 that are observable for the assets or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. as derived from prices).
* Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).
If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair
value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the
fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.
The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the
reporting period during which the change has occurred.
Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in Note 34 Financial instruments.

6

Changes to significant accounting policies
The Group and/or Company initially applied IFRS 16 Leases from 1 January 2019. A number of other new
standards are also effective from 1 January 2019 but they do not have a material effect on the Company’s
financial statements.
The Group and/or Company applied IFRS 16 using the modified retrospective approach. Under this
approach, the Group and/or Company elects to measure its right of use assets at 1 January 2019 at an
amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted as appropriate. Accordingly, the comparative information
presented for 2018 is not restated – i.e. it is presented, as previously reported, under IAS 17 and related
interpretations. The details of the changes in accounting policies are disclosed below. Additionally, the
disclosure requirements in IFRS 16 have not generally been applied to comparative information.
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(a) Definition of a lease
Previously, the Group and/or Company determined at contract inception whether an arrangement was or
contained a lease under IFRIC 4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease. The Group
and/or Company now assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease based on the definition of a lease,
as explained in Note 7(e).
On transition to IFRS 16, the Group and/or Company elected to apply the practical expedient to
grandfather the assessment of which transactions are leases. The Group and/or Company applied IFRS 16
only to contracts that were previously identified as leases. Contracts that were not identified as leases
under IAS 17 and IFRIC 4 were not reassessed for whether there is a lease under IFRS 16. Therefore, the
definition of a lease under IFRS 16 was applied only to contracts entered into or changed on or after 1
January 2019.
(b) As a lessee
As a lessee, the Group and/ Company leases properties. The lease typically runs for one year with an
option to extend three months before that the expiration of the term. The Group and/ Company previously
classified leases as operating or finance leases based on its assessment of whether the lease transferred
significantly all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset to the Group and/
Company. Under IFRS 16, the Group and/ Company recognises right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for
most of these leases – i.e. these leases are on-balance sheet.
(i) Leases classified as operating leases under IAS 17
Previously, the Group and/or Company classified its office building as operating leases under IAS 17. On
transition, the Group and Company used the practical expedients when applying IFRS 16 to leases
previously classified as operating leases under IAS 17. In particular, the Group and/or Company:
• did not recognise right-of-use assets and liabilities for the leased properties for which the lease term ends
within 12 months of the date of initial application and the Group/Company is not reasonably certain to
exercise extension options.
• did not recognise right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases of low value assets.
• used hindsight when determining the lease term.
7. Significant accounting policies
The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these
financial statements.
(a) Basis of consolidation
i. Business combination
The Group accounts for business combinations using the acquisition method when control is
transferred to the Group. The consideration transferred in the acquisition is generally measured
at fair value, as are the identifiable net assets acquired. Any goodwill that arises is tested
annually for impairment. Any gain on a bargain purchase is recognised in profit or loss
immediately.
The accounting policies of the subsidiaries are consistent with the policies adopted by the Group
and all intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised gains arising from intra-group
transactions, are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
On disposal of a subsidiary, the Group derecognises the assets (including any goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiaries at their carrying amounts at the date of disposal and also
derecognises the carrying amount of any related non controlling interest and other component of
equity at the date of sale but recognises the fair value of the consideration received from the sale,
while any resulting difference is recognised as a gain or loss in profit or loss attributable to the
Group.
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ii.

Non-controlling interests
Non-controlling interest is the equity in a subsidiary not attributable, directly or indirectly, to a parent
company and is presented separately in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and within equity
in the consolidated statement of financial position. Total comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling interests is presented on the line “Non-controlling interests” in the consolidated statement
of financial position, even if it can create negative non-controlling interest.
NCI are measured initially at their proportionate share of the identified net assets at the date of
acquisition. Changes in the Group's interest in subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control
accounted for as equity transactions.

iii. Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it has power
over the entity, is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. The financial statements
of the subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date on which
control commences until the date on which control ceases.
Investment in subsidiaries are carried at cost less impairment losses in the separate financial
statements. Where, in the opinion of the directors, there has been impairment in the value of an
investment, the loss is recognised as an expense in the year in which the impairment is identified.
iv. Transactions eliminated on consolidation
Intra-group balances and transactions and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intragroup transactions, are eliminated in preparing these consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
gains arising from transactions with equity accounted investees are eliminated against the investment
to the extent of the Group's interest in the investee. Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way
as unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.
(b) Foreign currency transactions
Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated and recorded in US Dollar at the actual
exchange rates as of the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at the reporting date are translated at the rates of exchange prevailing at that date.
The foreign currency gain or loss on monetary items is the difference between amortised cost in the
functional currency at the beginning of the period, adjusted for effective interest and payments during the
period, and the amortised cost in foreign currency translated at the exchange rate at the end of the reporting
period.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value are
translated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at the date that the fair value was determined.
Foreign currency differences arising on translation are recognized in profit or loss. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at
the date of the transaction.
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(c) Financial instruments
i. Recognition and initial measurement
Trade receivables are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial assets and
financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Group and/or Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.
A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component) or
financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs
that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a significant
financing component is initially measured at the transaction price.
ii. Classification and subsequent measurement
Financial assets
On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amortised cost; fair value through
other comprehensive income (FVOCI); or FVTPL.
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Company changes its
business model for managing financial assets, in which case all affected financial assets are reclassified on
the first day of the first reporting period following the change in the business model.
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:
–

it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows;
and

–

its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets – Business model assessment
The Group and/or Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a
financial asset is held at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and
information is provided to directors. The information considered includes:
–

the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice.
These include whether the directors' strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income,
maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the
duration of any related liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale of
the assets;

–

how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the directors

–

the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that
business model) and how those risks are managed;

–

how managers of the business are compensated – e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value
of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

–

the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such
sales and expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not
considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Group’s continuing recognition of the assets.
Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair
value basis are measured at FVTPL.
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Financial assets – Assessment of whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal
and interest
For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial
recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk
associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic
lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.
In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Group
and/or Company considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the
financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash
flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Group and/or Company
considers:
– contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;
– terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable-rate features;
– prepayment and extension features; and
– terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. nonrecourse features).
A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the
prepayment amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, which may include reasonable additional compensation for early termination of the
contract. Additionally, for a financial asset acquired at a discount or premium to its contractual par
amount, a feature that permits or requires prepayment at an amount that substantially represents the
contractual par amount plus accrued (but unpaid) contractual interest (which may also include reasonable
additional compensation for early termination) is treated as consistent with this criterion if the fair value of
the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial recognition.
Financial assets – Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets
at amortised
cost

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or
loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities – Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses
Financial liabilities such as loans and borrowings are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL.
Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest
expense, are recognised in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss
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iii. Derecognition
Financial assets
The Group and/or Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash
flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in
a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are
transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and
rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset.
Financial liabilities
The Group and/or Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are
discharged or cancelled, or expire. The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms
are modified and the cash flows of the modified liability are substantially different, in which case a
new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value.
On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount extinguished and
the consideration paid (including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed) is recognised
in profit or loss.
iv. Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of
financial position when, and only when, the Group and/or Company currently has a legally
enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
(d) Property, plant and equipment (PPE)
i. Recognition and measurement
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment shall be recognised as an asset if and only if:
- It is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity; and
- the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses.
Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. Property, plant
and equipment under construction are disclosed as capital work-in-progress. The cost of selfconstructed asset includes the cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable
to bringing the assets to a working condition for their intended use including, where applicable, the
costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located and
borrowing costs on qualifying assets.
Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalised as part
of the equipment.
If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.
Gains or losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in profit or loss.
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ii.

Subsequent costs
The cost of replacing a part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the carrying
amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will
flow to the Group and/or Company and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognized. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment
are recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

iii. Depreciation
Items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated from the date that they are available for use or,
in respect of self constructed assets, from the date that the asset is completed and ready for use.
Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their
estimated residual values using the straight line method over their estimated useful lives.
Depreciation is generally recognized in profit or loss, unless the amount is included in the carrying
amount of another asset.
Leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful life unless it is
reasonably certain that the Group and/ Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term in
which case, the assets are depreciated over the useful life.
The
The estimated useful lives of property plant and equipment for current and comparative periods are as
follows:
Type of asset
Useful life
Furniture and fittings
5 years
Office equipment
5 years
Motor vehicles
5 years
Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year end and
adjusted if appropriate.
Capital work in progress is not depreciated. The attributable cost of each asset is transferred to the
relevant asset category immediately the asset is available for use and depreciated accordingly.
The Hydro property at the Shiroro Plant have not been recognised as part of the Company's Property
Plant and Equipment (PPE) as these do not meet the criteria for recognition as PPE under IAS 16.
(e) Leases
The Group and/or Company have applied IFRS 16 using the modified retrospective approach and
therefore the comparative information has not been restated and continues to be reported under IAS 17 and
IFRIC 4. The details of accounting policies under IAS 17 and IFRIC 4 are disclosed separately.
Policy applicable from 1 January 2019
At inception of a contract, the Group and /or Company assess whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for
a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control
the use of an identified asset, the Company uses the definition of a lease in IFRS 16.
This policy is applied to contracts entered into, or changed, on or after 1 January 2019.
(i) As a lessee
The Group and/or Company recognise a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement
date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct
costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the
underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.
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The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement
date to the end of the lease term, unless the lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the
Company by the end of the lease term or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the Group and/or
Company will exercise a purchase option. In that case the right-of-use asset will be depreciated over the
useful life of the underlying asset, which is determined on the same basis as those of plant property and
equipment.. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and
adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.
The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Group and/or Company's incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Group and/or
Company uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.
The Group and/Company determines its incremental borrowing rate by obtaining interest rates from
various external financing sources and makes certain adjustments to reflect the terms of the lease and type
of the asset leased.
Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:
- fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;
- variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at
the commencement date;
- amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and
- the exercise price under a purchase option that the Group and/ Company is reasonably certain to exercise,
lease payments in an optional renewal period if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an extension
option, and penalties for early termination of a lease unless the Company is reasonably certain not to
terminate early.
The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured when
there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in
the Group and/Company's estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee,
or if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination
option.
When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset has been reduced to zero.
Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Group and/Company have elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for shortterm leases of building that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. The
Group and/Company recognise the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straightline basis over the lease term.
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Policy applicable before 1 January 2019
For contracts entered into before 1 January 2019, the Group and/or Company determined whether the
arrangement was or contained a lease based on the assessment of whether:
- fulfilment of the arrangement was dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets; and
- the arrangement had conveyed a right to use the asset. An arrangement conveyed the right to use the asset
if one of the following was met;
- the purchaser had the ability or right to operate the asset while obtaining or controlling more than an
insignificant amount of the output;
- the purchaser had the ability or right to control physical access to the asset while obtaining or
controlling more than an insignificant amount of the output; or
- facts and circumstances indicated that it was remote that other parties would take more than an
insignificant amount of the output, and the price per unit was neither fixed per unit of output nor equal to
the current market price per unit of output.
(i) As a lessee
In the comparative period, as a lessee the Group and/or Company classified leases that transfer
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership as finance leases. When this was the case, the leased
assets were measured initially at an amount equal to the lower of their fair value and the present value of
the minimum lease payments. Minimum lease payments were the payments over the lease term that the
lessee was required to make, excluding any contingent rent. Subsequently, the assets were accounted for in
accordance with the accounting policy applicable to that asset.
Assets held under other leases were classified as operating leases and were not recognised in the Group
and/Company's statement of financial position. Payments made under operating leases were recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Lease incentives received were recognised
as an integral part of the total lease expense, over the term of the lease.
(ii) As a lessor
When the Group and/or Company acted as a lessor, it determined at lease inception whether each lease
was a finance lease or an operating lease. To classify each lease, the Company made an overall assessment
of whether the lease transferred substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the
underlying asset. If this was the case, then the lease was a finance lease; if not, then it was an operating
lease. As part of this assessment, the Group and/or Company considered certain indicators such as whether
the lease was for the major part of the economic life of the asset.
(f) Impairment
i.
Non-derivative financial assets
The Group and/or Company recognise loss allowances for ECLs on:
financial assets measured at amortised cost;
contract assets
The Group and/or Company measure loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, except for
the following, which are measured at 12-month ECLs
-

debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and
bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the expected life of the
financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition.
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Loss allowances for trade receivables and contract assets are always measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs.
When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Group/ and Company considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Group’s/ and Company’s historical
experience and informed credit assessment and including forward-looking information.
The Group and/or Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased
significantly if it is more than 90 days past due.
The Group and/or Company considers a financial asset to be in default when:
the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group and/or Company in full,
without recourse by the Group to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or
-

the financial asset is more than 365 days past due

Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument.
12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible within the 12
months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less than
12 months).
The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period over
which the Group/ and Company is exposed to credit risk.
Measurement of ECLs
ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present
value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in accordance
with the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive). ECLs are discounted at the
effective interest rate of the financial asset.
Credit-impaired financial assets
At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost and debt
securities at FVOCI are credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have
occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:
significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Group/ and Company on terms that the Group/ and
Company would not consider otherwise;
it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or
the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.
-
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Presentation of allowance for ECL in the statement of financial position
Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets.
For debt securities at FVOCI, the loss allowance is charged to profit or loss and is recognised in OCI
Write-off
The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Group and/or Company have
no reasonable expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. The
Group and/or Company have a policy of writing off the gross carrying amount of the financial asset
when the outcome of an enforcement activity has proven beyond reasonable doubt that there is no
reasonable expectations of recovering the financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. The
Group and/or Company believes there is reasonable expectations of recovering the carrying amount
of its financial assets while the financial asset is still subject to enforcement activity.
ii.

Non-financial assets
At each reporting date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets (other than
inventories, contract assets and deferred tax assets) to determine whether there is any indication of
impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. The
recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to
sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset or CGU.
An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. They are allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of
the other assets in the CGU on a pro rata basis.
An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no
impairment loss had been recognised.

(g) Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets
i Provisions
A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Group and/or Company has a present legal
or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting
the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognized as
finance cost.
A provision for restructuring is recognised when the Group and/or Company has approved a detailed
and formal restructuring plan, and the restructuring either has commenced or has been announced
publicly. Future operating losses are not provided for.
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A provision for onerous contracts is recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the
Group and/or Company from a contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations
under the contract. The provision is measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of
terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Before a provision
is established, the Group and/or Company recognizes any impairment loss on the assets associated
with that contract.
ii Contingent liabilities
A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the Group and/or Company, or a present obligation that arises from past
events but is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; or the amount of the obligation cannot be
measured with sufficient reliability.
Contingent liabilities are only disclosed and not recognised as liabilities in the statement of financial
position.
If the likelihood of an outflow of resources is remote, the possible obligation is neither a provision
nor a contingent liability and no disclosure is made.
iii Contingent assets
A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the Group and/or Company.
Contingent assets are only disclosed and are not recognized as assets in the statement of financial
position. A contingent asset is presented when an inflow of economic benefits is probable. If the flow
of economic benefits:
a) is not probable – no asset is recognized and the inflow is not disclosed as a contingent asset;
b) is probable, but uncertain – no asset is recognized, but the possible inflow is disclosed as a
contingent asset;
c) is certain – that asset is no longer contingent and its recognition becomes appropriate.
Contingent assets are continuously evaluated in order to ensure the appropriate reflection of changes
in financial statements. If the inflow of economic benefits becomes certain and the value of the asset
can be measured with reliability, the asset and the corresponding revenue will be recognized in
financial statements for the period when the changes occurred.
(h) Revenue
Revenue recognition under IFRS 15
Service concession arrangement
Revenue related to construction or upgrade services under a service concession arrangement is recognised
over time while Operation or service revenue is recognised in the period in which the services are provided
by the Group and/or Company.
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Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer. The Group and/or
Company recognises revenue when it transfers control over the service to the customer.
The Group and/or Company currently generates its revenue from capacity generated and energy shared.
Capacity generation is the maximum electricity available for consumption at any given time which is
measured in megawatts (MW) whilst energy shared is the actual electricity consumed which is measured in
kilo-watt-hours (kWh).
Revenue from Deemed capacity represents consideration to the Group and/or Company for capacity which
it makes available but is not taken up by NBET.
Other revenue represents fixed and variable component of black-start billings earned by the Company
during periods of turbulent storm and back flush of electricity.
(i) Finance income and finance costs
Finance income comprises interest income on deposits. Finance income is recognized as it accrues in profit
or loss, using the effective interest method.
Finance costs comprise bank charges, interest expense on borrowings, fair value loss on derivative liability
and unwinding of the discount on provisions. Borrowing costs that are not directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are recognised in profit or loss using the
effective interest method.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument to:
The gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or
-

The amortised cost of the financial liability.

In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset (when the asset is not credit impaired) or to the amortised cost of the liability.
However, for financial assets that have become credit impaired subsequent to initial recognition, interest
income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If
the asset is no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation of interest income revert to the gross basis.
Foreign currency gains and losses are reported on a net basis as either finance income or finance cost
depending on whether foreign currency movements are in a net gain or net loss position.
(j) Income and deferred tax
Income tax expense comprises current (company income tax, tertiary education tax and Nigeria Police
Trust Fund levy) and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax are recognized in profit or loss except to
the extent that it relates to a business combination or items recognized directly in equity or in other
comprehensive income.
The Group and/Company had determined that interest and penalties relating to income taxes, including
uncertain tax treatments, do not meet the definition of income taxes, and therefore are accounted for under
IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets.
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i

Current tax
Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using
tax rates statutorily enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years. The amount of current tax payable or receivable is the best estimate of the tax amount
expected to be paid or received that reflects uncertainty related to income taxes, if any. It is measured
using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date and is assessed as follows:
- Company income tax is computed on taxable profits
- Tertiary education tax is computed on assessable profits
- Nigeria Police Trust Fund levy is computed on net profit (i.e. profit after deducting all expenses and
taxes from revenue earned by the company during the year)
Total amount of tax payable under CITA is determined based on the higher of two components
namely Company Income Tax (based on taxable income (or loss) for the year); and minimum tax.
Taxes based on profit for the period are treated as income tax in line with IAS 12.
Minimum tax
Minimum tax which is based on a gross amount is outside the scope of IAS 12 and therefore, are not
presented as part of income tax expense in the profit or loss.
Minimum tax is determined based on the sum of:
- the highest of; 0.25% of revenue of N500,000, 0.5% of gross profit, 0.25% of paid up share capital
and 0.5% of net assets; and
- 0.125% of revenue in excess of N500,000.
Where the minimum tax charge is higher than the Company Income Tax (CIT), a hybrid tax situation
exists. In this situation, the CIT is recognised in the income tax expense line in the profit or loss and
the excess amount is presented above the income tax line as minimum tax.
The Company offsets the tax assets arising from withholding tax (WHT) credits and current tax
liabilities if, and only if, the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts,
and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
The tax asset is reviewed at each reporting date and written down to the extent that it is no longer
probable that future economic benefit would be realised.

ii

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred
tax is not recognised for:
• temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not
a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss;
• temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements to
the extent that the Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and
• taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.
Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
they can be used. Future taxable profits are determined based on the reversal of relevant taxable
temporary differences. If the amount of taxable temporary differences is insufficient to recognise a
deferred tax asset in full, then future taxable profits, adjusted for reversals of existing temporary
differences, are considered, based on the business plans of the Company as approved by the
Directors. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised; such reductions are reversed when
the probability of future taxable profits improves.
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Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be
used.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences
when they reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.
The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its
assets and liabilities. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if certain criteria are met.
(k) Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventories is determined
using the weighted average method and includes expenditures incurred in acquiring the inventories, and
other costs incurred in bringing them to their existing location and condition.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs
of completion and selling expenses. Inventory values are adjusted for obsolete, slow moving and defective
items.
(l) Intangible assets
i
Recognition and measurement
Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group and/ Company are measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
Service concession arrangement
The Group and/ Company recognises an intangible asset arising from a service concession
arrangement when it has a right to charge for use of the concession infrastructure. The intangible
asset is measured initially at cost which comprises of the fair value of the fixed payment
made/payable to the grantor and other directly attributable expenditure.
An intangible asset received as consideration for providing construction or upgrade services in a
service concession arrangement is measured at fair value on initial recognition with reference to the
fair value of the services provided.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the intangible asset is measured at cost, less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
Other intangible assets with finite useful lives
Other intangible assets, including IT Software and the solar generating license acquired by the
Company and have finite useful lives are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses.
ii

Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure on the concession infrastructure and solar generating license is capitalised
only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific intangible asset to which
it relates. All other expenditure is recognised in profit or loss as the obligation falls due.

iii

Amortisation of intangible assets
Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets using the straight line method over
their estimated useful life and is generally recognized in profit or loss account.
The estimated useful lives for current and comparative periods are as follows:
- service concession
over the concession period
- solar generating license
10 years
- IT software
5 years
Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted if appropriate.
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(m) Dividends
An accrual is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being appropriately authorised and no longer
at the discretion of the Company, on or before the end of the reporting period but not distributed at the end
of the reporting period.
(n) Share capital
The Company has only one class of shares, ordinary shares. Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares are recognized as a deduction from
equity, net of any tax effects.
When new shares are issued, they are recorded in share capital at their value. The excess of the issue price
is recorded in the share premium reserve.
(o) Operating profit
Operating profit is the result generated from the continuing principal revenue producing activities of the
Group and/ Company as well as other income and expenses related to operating activities. Operating profit
excludes net finance costs and income taxes.
(p) Employee benefits
i
Defined contribution plan
A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan (pension fund) under which the
Company pays fixed contributions into a separate entity as the related service is provided. The Group
and/or Company has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does
not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the current
and prior periods.
In line with the provisions of the Pension Reform Act 2014, the Group and/or Company has instituted
a defined contribution pension scheme for its permanent staff. The Group and/or Company and
employee contributes 10% and 8% respectively of each employee’s basic salary, transport and
housing allowances which is charged to profit or loss as employee benefit expense in the periods
during which services are rendered by employees. Employee contributions are funded through payroll
deductions.
ii

Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as
the related service is provided.
A liability is recognized for the amount expected to be paid under short term cash bonuses if the
Group and/or Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of
past service provided by the employee, and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

iii

Termination benefits
Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the Group and/or Company
before the normal retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in
exchange for these benefits. The Group and/or Company recognises termination benefits at the earlier
of the following dates: (a) when the Group and/ Company can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits; and (b) when the entity recognises costs for a restructuring that is within the scope of IAS
37 and involves the payment of termination benefits. In the case of an offer made to encourage
voluntary redundancy, the termination benefits are measured based on the number of employees
expected to accept the offer. Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the end of the reporting
period are discounted to their present value.
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(q) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to cash
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in their fair value, and are used by the Group in the
management of its short-term commitments.
(r) Statement of cash flows
The statement of cash flows is prepared using the indirect method. Changes in statement of financial
position items that have not resulted in cash flows are eliminated for the purpose of preparing the
statement of cash flows. Dividends paid to ordinary shareholders are included in financing activities.
Finance costs paid is also included in financing activities while finance income is included in investing
activities.
The Group and/Company has adopted Amendments to IAS 7 (Disclosure Initiative) with initial date of
application of 1 January 2017. The amendments provide for disclosures which enable users of financial
statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities including both changes arising
from cash flow and non-cash changes. This includes providing a reconciliation between the opening and
closing balances arising from the financing activities.
(s) Keep or deal items (other payables)
The Group and/Company has classified items provided by the grantor as keep or deal items in which the
Company may retain or sell at its discretion. These are measured at fair value on initial recognition with a
corresponding liability representing the obligation to provide services in the future. This obligation is
unwound to the profit or loss on a straight line basis over the period of service.
(t) Fair value measurement
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal market or, in its absence,
the most advantageous market to which the Group and/or Company has access at that date. The fair value
of a liability reflects its non-performance risk.
When available, the Group and/or Company measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted
price in an active market for that instrument. A market is regarded as active if transactions for the asset or
liability take place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing
basis.
If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the Group and/or Company uses valuation techniques
that maximise the use of relevant observable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable inputs. The
chosen valuation technique incorporates all of the factors that market participants would take into account
in pricing a transaction.
The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument at initial recognition is normally the
transaction price - i.e. the fair value of the consideration given or received. If the Group and/ Company
determines that the fair value at initial recognition differs from the transaction price and the fair value is
evidenced neither by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or liability nor based on a
valuation technique that uses only data from observable markets, then the financial instrument is initially
measured at fair value, adjusted to defer the difference between the fair value at initial recognition and the
transaction price.
Subsequently, that difference is recognised in profit or loss on an appropriate basis over the life of the
instrument but no later than when the valuation is wholly supported by observable market data or the
transaction is closed out.
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(u) New and amended Standards and Interpretations
A number of new standards are effective for annual periods beginning after 1 January 2019 and earlier
application is permitted; however, the Group and/Company has not early adopted the new or amended
standards in preparing these financial statements and plans to adopt them as relevant on their respective
effective date.
Those standards, amendments to standards and interpretations which may be relevant to the Group and/
Company are set out below.
(i) IFRS 16 Leases
The Group and/or Company applied IFRS 16 for the first time. The nature and effect of the changes as a
result of adoption of this new accounting standard is described in Note 6.
(ii) IFRIC 23 - Uncertainty Over Income Tax Treatments:
The Group and/or Company applied IFRIC 23 for the first time. There are no material impact as a result of
the adoption of this new accounting standard.
(iii) Standards and Interpretations not yet effective
There are new or revised Accounting Standards and Interpretations in issue that are not yet effective.
These include the following Standards and Interpretations that are applicable to the business of the entity
and may have an impact on future financial statements:
Effective for the financial year commencing 1 January 2020
- Amendments to References to Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards
- Definition of Material (Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8)
- Definition of a Business (Amendments to IFRS 3)
The Company does not plan to early adopt these standards. These will be adopted in the period that they
become mandatory unless otherwise indicated:
Amendments to References to Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards
The IASB decided to revise the Conceptual Framework because certain important issues were not covered
and certain guidance was unclear or out of date. The revised Conceptual Framework, issued by the IASB
in March 2018, includes:
• A new chapter on measurement;
• Guidance on reporting financial performance;
• Improved definitions of an asset and a liability, and guidance supporting these definitions; and
• Clarifications in important areas, such as the roles of stewardship, prudence and measurement uncertainty
in financial reporting.
The IASB also updated references to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards by issuing
Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards. This was done to support
transition to the revised Conceptual Framework for companies that develop accounting policies using the
Conceptual Framework when no IFRS Standard applies to a particular transaction.
The Company is yet to carry out an assessment to determine the impact of this amendment on its financial
statements
(ii) Definition of Material (Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8)
The IASB refined its definition of material to make it easier to understand. It is now aligned across IFRS
Standards and the Conceptual Framework.
The changes in Definition of Material (Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8) all relate to a revised definition
of ‘material’ which is quoted below from the final amendments
“Information is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial statements make on the basis of those
financial statements, which provide financial information about a specific reporting entity.”
The Board has also removed the definition of material omissions or misstatements from IAS 8 Accounting
Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors.
The Board does not expect significant change – the refinements are not intended to alter the concept of
materiality.
The Company is yet to carry out an assessment to determine the impact of this amendment on its financial
statements.
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The Board has also removed the definition of material omissions or misstatements from IAS 8 Accounting
Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors.
The Board does not expect significant change – the refinements are not intended to alter the concept of
materiality.
The Company is yet to carry out an assessment to determine the impact of this amendment on its financial
statements.
8 Service concession arrangement
On 21 February 2013, the Company entered into a service concession agreement with the Federal
Government of Nigeria ("Federal Government") to generate and provide electricity from the Shiroro Hydro
Electric Power Plant. The Company officially took over the plant on 1 November 2013. Under the terms of
the agreement, the Company will operate and make the electricity available to the public for a period of
thirty years, starting from 1 November 2013. The Company will be responsible for any upgrade and
maintenance services required during the concession period. In addition, the Company has an obligation to
restore the Shiroro Hydro Electric Power Plant to its full operational capacity at the end of the concession
period. To this end, it continues to incur costs on the repair, refurbishment and rehabilitation of the plant
as is necessary.
The Company, through the Bureau of Public Enterprise ("BPE") will provide the Federal Government a
guaranteed minimum annual payment for each year that the Shiroro Hydro Electric Power Plant is in
operation. Additionally, the Company has the right to charge a predetermined price for capacity available
and energy generated which the Company will collect and retain. At the end of the concession period, the
Shiroro Hydro Electric Power Plant will become the property of the Federal Government and the Company
will have no further involvement in its operation or maintenance requirements.
The service concession agreement does not contain a renewal option. The rights of the grantor to terminate
the agreement include poor performance by the Company and in the event of a material breach in the terms
of the agreement. The rights of the Company to terminate the agreement include a material breach in the
terms of the agreement, and any changes in law that would render it impossible for the Company to fulfil
its requirements under the agreement.
For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company earned revenue of ₦38.79 billion (2018: ₦ 37.67
billion), consisting of ₦ 29.8 billion(2018: ₦ 27.7 billion) on capacity and energy generation, ₦8.8 billion
(2018: ₦ 9.8 billion) on deemed capacity and ₦215 million (2018: ₦ 172.64 million) on black-start
billings (See Note 9). The Company's profit before tax was ₦10.71 billion (2018: Loss before tax of $2.13
million).
The Company has recognised a service concession payable, measured initially at the fair value of the
annual fees of ₦13.25 billion ($85,329,132) representing the present value of the guaranteed annual
minimum payments to the BPE, discounted at a rate of 15%. Balance as at year end is ₦ 61.35billion
(2018: ₦ 54.35 billion) (See Note 28).
The Company has recognised an intangible asset of ₦55.53 billion (2018: ₦ 54.19 billion); ₦11.05 billion
has been amortised to date (2018:₦ 9.01 billion) (See Note 15). This capitalised cost of the intangible
assets include all preacquisition costs of the concession and the discounted value of the annual fees
payable to the BPE. The intangible asset represents the right to charge users a fee for the generation of
electricity.
Keep or deal items (other payables)
Items provided by the grantor are keep or deal items in which the Company may retain or sell at its
discretion. These are measured at fair value on initial recognition with a corresponding liability
representing the obligation to provide services in the future. This obligation is unwound to the profit or
loss on a straight line basis over the period of service.
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9 Revenue
Revenue from contracts with customers is disaggregated by major service lines as follows:
Timing of Revenue
Recognition
Electricity revenue

At a point in time

Deemed capacity revenue
Other revenue (Note 9(a))

At a point in time
At a point in time

Group
2019
2018
29,750,987
27,703,274

Company
2019
2018
29,750,987 27,703,274

8,824,187
215,000
38,790,174

8,824,187
215,000
38,790,174

9,798,261
172,640
37,674,175

9,798,261
172,640
37,674,175

(a) Other revenue represents fixed and variable component of black-start billings earned by the Company. The fixed
element represents revenue earned on capacity generated to supply energy during periods of turbulent storm and
back flush of electricity. The variable element represents revenue earned on each incident of black start activity
to other generating companies through the Market Operator.
(b) The following table provides information about receivables from contracts with customers
Group
Company
2019
2018
2019
2018
Receivables which are included in trade and other
28,762,392
19,384,594
28,762,392 19,384,594
receivables
10 Expenses

Royalties (Note 10(a))
Staff costs
Amortisation of concession cost (Note 15)
Management services (Note 31(e))
Maintenance costs
Direct costs
Depreciation -Property, plant and equipment (Note 14)
Amortisation (Note 15)
Staff costs
Maintenance costs
Consultancy fees on solar and other projects
Auditor's fees (Note 12(c ))
Professional fees (Note 10(b))
Management fees (Note 31(d))
Travel expenses
Directors' remuneration (Note 12(b) (ii))
Rental and insurance charges
Security costs
Utility costs
Medical expenses
Motor running expenses
Entertainment expenses
Office expenses
Corporate social responsibility
Subscription and registration
Other expenses
General and administrative expenses
Impairment loss on trade receivables (Note 34(a))
Impairment loss on trade receivables
Total direct costs, impairment loss, general and
administrative expenses

Group
2019
2018
1,487,573
1,385,103
903,376
897,791
1,864,493
1,790,991
743,761
675,563
214,548
198,658
5,213,751
4,948,106
125,946
99,176
35,574
46,833
1,978,394
1,565,089
173,426
232,636
34,896
25,167
17,754
1,537,363
228,044
434,851
379,870
1,164,753
974,316
534,004
374,666
95,388
66,424
6,436
7,653
76,400
12,856
42,339
76,525
32,039
48,364
30,580
27,549
429,278
112,033
112,147
148,152
64,239
99,790
6,898,324
4,552,626

Company
2019
2018
1,487,573
1,385,103
903,376
897,791
1,864,493
1,790,991
743,761
675,563
214,548
198,658
5,213,751
4,948,106
125,946
99,176
35,574
46,833
1,978,394
1,565,089
173,426
232,636
21,849
17,754
1,462,111
228,044
35,510
434,851
379,870
1,164,753
974,316
534,004
374,666
95,388
66,424
6,436
7,653
76,400
12,856
42,339
76,525
32,039
48,364
30,580
27,549
429,278
112,033
112,147
148,152
64,239
99,790
6,855,264
4,517,730

8,254,030

20,157,297

8,254,030

20,157,297

8,254,030

20,157,297

8,254,030

20,157,297

20,366,105

29,658,029

20,323,045

29,623,133
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(a) Amount represents accrued monthly royalty payable to the Bureau of Public Enterprises being five per cent (5%)
of the Company's pre-tax gross sales revenue over the previous month. Pre-tax gross sales is exclusive of income
from black start services.
Included
in the profession fees is the amount paid to related parties who were appointed as ambassadors to
(b)
drive eligible customer initiative across all states of the Federation. (See Note 31).
11 Finance income and finance costs
Group
2019
Finance income
Interest income
Finance costs
Unwinding of discount on concession fees payable
(Note 28)
Bank charges and fees
Interest expense on loans and borrowings (Note 27)
Gain on fair valuation of derivative liability
Foreign exchange loss, net
Other finance costs
Net finance costs

2018

Company
2019

2018

1,862,208

290,795

1,857,386

290,795

6,991,952
358,221
1,032,061
1,191,642
2,581,924
9,573,876

7,006,629
86,626
1,052,372
(2,755)
852,182
1,988,425
8,995,054

6,991,952
357,795
1,032,061
1,191,642
2,581,498
9,573,450

7,006,629
86,626
1,052,372
(2,755)
852,182
1,988,425
8,995,054

7,711,668

8,704,259

7,716,064

8,704,259

(a) Reconciliation of finance cost to statement of cashflows
Net finance costs (Note 11)
Foreign exchange net
Exchange difference from loans and borrowings
(Note 27)
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash
equivalents
Finance cost included in statement of cash flows

Group
7,711,668
8,704,259
(1,189,955)
(820,931)

Company
7,716,064
8,704,259
(1,191,900)
(821,240)

-

(10,407)

-

(1,687)

820,042

258

6,520,026

8,692,963

6,524,422

(10,407)
820,042
8,692,654

12 Profit /(loss) before taxation
(a) Profit /(loss) before taxation is stated after charging/ (crediting):
Group
Depreciation -Property, plant and equipment
(Note 14)
Amortization (Note 15)
Directors' remuneration (Note 12(b) (ii))
Auditor’s fees (Note 12(c))
Staff costs (Note 12(b) (i))
Royalties (Note 10(a))
Impairment loss on trade receivables (Note 34(a))
Foreign exchange loss, net

Company

2019

2018

2019

2018

125,946
1,900,067
1,164,753
25,167
2,882,593
1,487,573
8,254,030
1,191,642

99,176
1,837,824
974,316
17,754
2,698,883
1,385,103
20,157,297
852,182

125,946
1,900,067
1,164,753
21,849
2,882,593
1,487,573
8,254,030
1,191,642

99,176
1,837,824
974,316
17,754
2,698,883
1,385,103
20,157,297
852,182

(b) Staff costs and director's remuneration:
(i) Staff costs during the year amounted to:

Salaries and wages
Pension cost

Group
2019
2018
2,793,279
2,431,965
89,314
267,225
2,882,593
2,699,190

Company
2019
2018
2,793,279
2,431,965
89,314
267,225
2,882,593
2,699,190
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(ii) Directors' remuneration paid during the year were as follows:
Group
Executive director's compensation
Directors' fees
Other emoluments

2019
1,222
1,099,085
64,446
1,164,753

Company
2018
236,003
700,969
37,344
974,316

2019
1,222
1,099,085
64,446
1,164,753

2018
236,003
700,969
37,344
974,316

(iii) The average number of full time persons employed by the Group and /or Company during the year was as
follows:
Group

Operations
Administration

2019
Number
200
99
299

Company
2018
Number
205
136
341

2019
Number
200
99
299

2018
Number
205
136
341

(iv) Employees of the Group and/or Company, other than directors, whose duties were wholly and mainly
discharged in Nigeria, received remuneration in the following ranges:

Below ₦ 3,000,000
3,000,001
-4,000,000
4,000,001
-5,000,000
5,000,001
-6,000,000
6,000,001
-7,000,000
7,000,001
-8,000,000
8,000,001
-9,000,000
9,000,001
-10,000,000
10,000,001
-11,000,000
11,000,001
-12,000,000
12,000,001
-13,000,000
13,000,001
-14,000,000
14,000,001
-15,000,000
Above ₦ 15,000,001

Group
2019
Number
80
74
42
27
3
10
9
14
11
7
5
3
1
13
299

2018
Number
139
78
41
7
11
10
23
2
9
7
2
2
10
341

Company
2019
2018
Number
Number
80
139
74
78
42
41
27
7
3
11
10
10
9
23
14
2
11
9
7
7
5
2
3
1
2
13
10
299
341

(c) During the year, KPMG Professional Services provided the following services to the Group and/ Company:
Group
Statutory audit fees (Note 10)
Total audit fees
Non-audit services
Regulatory audit
Tax compliance service
Total non-audit services
Total fees

Company

2019
25,167
25,167

2018
17,754
17,754

2019
21,849
21,849

2018
17,754
17,754

12,845
500
13,345

-

12,845
12,845

-

38,512

17,754

34,694

17,754
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13 Taxation
(a) The tax charge for the year has been computed after adjusting for certain items of expenditure and income, which are
not deductible or chargeable for tax purposes, and comprises:
Group
Company
2019
2018
2019
2018
Current tax expense
4,953,382
4,946,364
Companies income tax
169,242
169,242
395,620
395,168
Tertiary education tax
33,848
33,848
316
270
Nigerian police trust fund levy
5,349,318
203,090
5,341,803
203,090
Deferred tax expense
Origination and reversal of
temporary differences
Tax expense on continuing
operations

(1,931,764)

4,528,341

(1,932,052)

4,528,341

3,417,554

4,731,431

3,409,751

4,731,431

(b) Reconciliation of effective tax rates
The tax on the Group and/ Company's profit/(loss) before tax differs from the theoretical amount as follows:
Group
Company
2019
2018
2019
%
%
%
%
Profit/(loss) before income tax
10,712,401
(688,113)
10,751,065
Income tax using the statutory
30
3,213,720
30
(206,434)
30
3,225,320
30
tax rate
Tertiary education tax using
2
214,248
2
(13,762)
2
215,021
2
the statutory tax rate
Nigerian police trust fund
0
270
270
Effect of:
Non-deductible expenses
0
14,421
(14)
94,655
0
14,421
(13)
Tax incentives
(0)
(36,434)
14
(94,805)
(36,434)
15
Tax exempt income arising
- (720)
4,951,777
- (758)
from pioneer status
Changes in estimates related to
0
11,329
(0)
(8,847)
prior years
4,731,431
32
3,417,554 (688)
32
3,409,751 (724)

2018
(653,217)
(195,965)
(13,064)
83,488
(94,805)
4,951,777
4,731,431

(c) Movement in current tax liabilities
Group
Balance at beginning of year
Provision during the year
Translation adjustment
Payment during the year
Balance at year end

2019
206,757
5,349,318
1,463
(317,969)
5,239,569

2018
2,935
203,090
732
206,757

Company
2019
206,757
5,341,803
1,415
(317,969)
5,232,006

2018
2,935
203,090
732
206,757
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14 Property, plant and equipment
Group/ Company
(a) The movement on these accounts during the year was as follows:
Motor vehicles Office equipment

Furniture and
fittings

Capital Work -in Progress

Total

Cost:
Balance at 1 January 2018
Additions
Disposal
Translation Adjustment
Balance as at 31 December 2018

138,006
353,239
(35,508)
1,386
457,123

15,300
9,489
78
24,867

85,374
3,367
(4,285)
276
84,732

139,582
410
139,992

238,680
505,677
(39,793)
2,150
706,714

Balance at 1 January 2019
Additions
Transfer
Disposal
Translation Adjustment
Balance as at 31 December 2019

457,123
94,224
(217)
551,130

24,867
59,236
64,146
328
148,577

84,732
17,801
85
102,618

139,992
235,408
(81,948)
(7)
293,445

706,714
388,868
188
1,095,770

Depreciation:
Balance at 1 January 2018
Charge for the year
Disposal
Translation Adjustment
Balance as at 31 December 2018

69,768
77,443
(31,528)
363
116,046

6,426
4,592
34
11,052

63,648
17,141
(3,979)
247
77,057

-

139,842
99,176
(35,507)
644
204,155

Balance at 1 January 2019
Charge for the year
Disposal
Translation Adjustment
Balance as at 31 December 2019

116,046
94,020
163
210,229

11,052
23,358
(92)
34,318

77,057
8,568
150
85,775

-

204,155
125,946
221
330,322

Carrying amounts:
At 1 January 2018
At 31 December 2018

68,238
341,077

8,874
13,815

21,726
7,675

139,992

98,838
502,559

At 31 December 2019

340,901

114,259

16,843

293,445

765,448

(a) Capital work in progress represents costs incurred on the Company's building construction, furniture & fittings construction and equipment acquisition projects in respect of
dilapidated staff and guest house accommodation under development as at the year end amounting to ₦293.45 million (2018: ₦139.99 million).

48

North South Power Company Limited
Annual Report
31 December 2019

Notes to the financial statements
In thousands of Naira
15 Intangible assets
Group / Company
(a) The movement on these accounts during the year was as follows:

Cost:
Balance at 1 January 2018
Additions
Translation adjustment
Balance as at 31 December 2018
Balance at 1 January 2019
Additions
Translation adjustment
Balance as at 31 December 2019
Amortisation:
Balance at 1 January 2018
Charge for the year
Translation Adjustment
Balance as at 31 December 2018
Balance at 1 January 2019
Charge for the year
Translation adjustment
Balance as at 31 December 2019
Carrying amounts:
At 1 January 2018
At 31 December 2018
At 31 December 2019

Concession
cost

IT Software
costs

Solar license

Total

53,215,542
804,125
176,271
54,195,938
54,195,938
1,091,101
250
55,287,289

205,326
12,550
708
218,584
218,584
(44)
218,540

24,480
80
24,560
24,560
24,560

53,445,348
816,675
177,059
54,439,082
54,439,082
1,091,101
206
55,530,389

7,187,022
1,790,991
28,753
9,006,766
9,006,766
1,864,493
632
10,871,891

93,636
46,833
444
140,913
140,913
35,574
(114)
176,373

-

7,280,658
1,837,824
29,197
9,147,679
9,147,679
1,900,067
518
11,048,264

46,028,520
45,189,172
44,415,398

111,690
77,671
42,167

24,480
24,560
24,560

46,164,690
45,291,403
44,482,125

(b) The amortisation of concession costs is included in "direct costs" in the statement of profit or loss.
(c) The balance of ₦55.29 billion on Concession cost consists of the sum of ₦18.98 billion incurred as cash
expenditure, the PV of annual concession fees payable to BPE for year 6 to year 30 and costs incurred by the
Company on upgrade of the Shiroro Hydroelectric Power Plant. Additions during the year represent costs
incurred by the Company on further upgrade of the plant.
(d) Management has performed an impairment assessment of its intangible assets that were not yet available for use
as at year end and directors are of the view that the asset is not impaired. No impairment loss was recorded in the
statement of profit or loss or other comprehensive income (2018: Nil).
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16 Investments
Group

Shiroro Solar Generating Company Limited
NSP-SPV Power Corp Plc
North South Gurara Energy Company Limited
Translational adjustment

31 Dec 2019
-

Company

31 Dec 2018
-

31 Dec 2019
3,991
921
2,456
40
7,408

31 Dec 2018
3,991
921
2,456
7,368

This represents investments of the Company in Shiroro Solar Generating Company Limited (SSGC), NSP-SPV
Power Corp Plc (NSP-SPVP) and North South Gurara Energy Company Limited (NSGEC).
SSGC was incorporated in Nigeria on 4 March 2015 for the purpose of carrying out the Shiroro solar power project
as well as other businesses in the power sector. It is yet to commence operations as at the year end. North South
Power Company Limited took up 99.99% stake in the issued share capital of SSGC representing 2.5 million shares
of ₦1 each converted at ₦197/$1, amounting to ₦2.5 million, $12,690.36.
NSP-SPVP was incorporated in Nigeria on 8 September 2017 for the purpose of issuing bonds to fund capital
expenditure, working capital, and enhance the liquidity of Company. North South Power Company Limited took up
99.99% stake in the issued share capital of NSP-SPVP representing 1.0 million shares of ₦1 each converted at
₦305.95/$1, amounting to ₦1.0 million, $3,268.51.
During the year, on 28 February 2019, NSP-SPVP on behalf the Company issued its first N8.5 billion/15
year/15.60% Series 1 Guaranteed Fixed Rate Senior Green Infrastructure Bonds (“Series 1 Green Bonds”), due 2034
under a N50 billion Debt Issuance Programme. The bond proceeds were loaned to the Company with similar terms
and conditions agreed with the bond subscribers in the bond agreements. (See Note 27(c)).
NSGEC was incorporated in Nigeria on 25 July 2018 to provide power/energy services, supply, install and maintain
renewable energy systems. It is yet to commence operations as at the year end. North South Power Company Limited
took up 99.99% stake in the issued share capital of NSGEC representing 2.5 million shares of ₦1 each converted at
₦305.95/$1, amounting to ₦2.5 million, ($8,171.27).
17 Inventories
Group
31 Dec 2019
Spares
Consumables

771,552
374,233
1,145,785

Company

31 Dec 2018 31 Dec 2019
785,920
338,621
1,124,541

771,552
374,233
1,145,785

31 Dec 2018
785,920
338,621
1,124,541

The value of inventories consumed and included in direct costs during the year was ₦74.76 million (2018: ₦54.74
million).
(a)

Reconciliation of changes in inventories to statement of cashflows
Group
Company
31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2018 31 Dec 2019
31 Dec 2018
Balance, beginning of the year
Movement during the year
Translational adjustment
Balance, end of the year

1,124,541
21,177
67
1,145,785

1,068,552
55,989
1,124,541

1,124,541
21,177
67
1,145,785

1,068,552
55,989
1,124,541
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Trade and other receivables comprise:
Group

Company

18 Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables
Black-start billings
Due from related parties (Note 18(a))
Other receivables

31 Dec 2019
28,631,192
131,200

31 Dec 2018
19,342,535
42,059

31 Dec 2019
28,631,192
131,200

31 Dec 2018
19,342,535
42,059

1,099,477
29,861,869

535,408
19,920,002

214,887
1,096,583
30,073,862

136,308
535,408
20,056,310

(a) Due from related parties represents expenses incurred by the Company on behalf of Shiroro Solar Generating
Company Limited (SSGC) , North South Gurara Energy Company, and NSP-SPV Powercorp Plc with respect
to Shiroro solar power project, Gurara power plant project and Bond issuance project respectively. The amounts
are repayable on demand.
(b) Included in the other receivables are interest receivables on fixed deposits made by the Group and/Company
with various financial institutions as at year end.
(c) Information about the Group/ Company's exposure to credit and market risks and impairment losses for trade
receivables is included in Note 34(a).
(d) Reconciliation of changes in trade and other receivables to statement of cash flows
Group
Company
31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2018 31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2018
Balance, beginning of the year
19,920,002
19,303,122
20,056,310
19,322,380
(8,473,172)
Adjustment on initial application of IFRS 9
(8,473,172)
Impairment loss recognised during the year
(8,254,030) (20,157,297) (8,254,030) (20,157,297)
(Note 10)
Unpaid share capital - Investment in subsidiary
7,368
Translation adjustment
3,056
21,305,891
3,063
21,378,534
(29,861,869) (19,920,002) (30,073,862) (20,056,310)
Balance, end of year
Changes in trade and other receivables included
(18,192,841)
(7,941,458) (18,268,519)
(7,978,497)
in statement of cash flows
(e) Interest clause in the Power Purchase Agreement
The Company is entitled to interest on electricity bills that are not paid within the contractual period as
stipulated in the Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) signed with the Company’s sole customer (NBET) on 21
February 2013. The Company started selling electricity to NBET in 2015 and did not recognise any interest up
to 2018 on the basis that NBET and NSP had not agreed on the interest amount to be charged as required by the
PPA.
During the year, the regulator - NERC ordered an industry wide reconciliation of outstanding amount of
electricity supplied including all applicable interest on electricity bills that were not paid by NBET within the
contractual period stipulated in the PPA. All industry operators, including the Company were further directed to
submit their reconciliations to the regulator.
Subsequent to year end, the Company forwarded the reconciliations showing the principal and interest payable
on electricity bills not paid within the contracted terms, starting from February 2015 to December 2019 to the
regulator and as at the date of the approval of these financial statements no response had been received from the
regulator. The interest component amounted to ₦14.7 billion ($47.9 million). Accordingly, as at year end, the
Board of Directors decided not to recognize but to disclose the interest income in the financial statements as it
was subject to NERC’s approval of the reconciled amount.
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19 Other assets
Other assets comprise:
Minimum reserve deposits for repayment of bonds
(Note 27 (c(ii))
Restricted cash balances*

Current
Non current

Group
Company
31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2018 31 Dec 2019
31 Dec 2018
Restated
Restated
1,583,929
319,496
1,903,425

253,889
253,889

1,583,929
319,496
1,903,425

253,889
253,889

319,496
1,583,929
1,903,425

253,889
253,889

319,496
1,583,929
1,903,425

253,889
253,889

*Restricted cash balances are cash deposits used to collateralise bank guarantees issued in favour of Federal Ministry
of Water Resources and the Company's suppliers for the importation of plant alteration items. These bank guarantees
were issued by Nigerian commercial banks and are renewable annually.
Restricted cash balances are not available for use in the Company’s day-to-day operations.
(a) Reconciliation of changes in other asset to statement of cashflows
Group
Company
31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2018 31 Dec 2019
31 Dec 2018
Balance as at beginning of the year
Balance as at end of the year
Translational adjustment
Changes in other asset included in statement
of cash flows

253,889
(1,903,425)
455

(253,889)
-

253,889
(1,903,425)
455

(253,889)
-

(1,649,081)

(253,889)

(1,649,081)

(253,889)

20 Prepayments
Group
Prepayments comprise:
Insurance
Subscriptions
Rentals

Current
Non current

(a)

Company

31 Dec 2019
230,924
8,089
73,239
312,252

31 Dec 2018
115,125
17,499
85,960
218,584

31 Dec 2019
230,924
8,089
73,239
312,252

31 Dec 2018
115,125
17,499
85,960
218,584

302,250
10,002
312,252

216,742
1,842
218,584

302,250
10,002
312,252

216,742
1,842
218,584

Reconciliation of changes in prepayment to statement of cashflows
Group
31 Dec 2019
Balance, beginning of the year
Balance as at end of the year
Translation adjustment
Changes in prepayment included in
statement of cash flows

Company

31 Dec 2018 31 Dec 2019

31 Dec 2018

218,584
(312,252)
(250)

216,342
2,242
-

218,584
(312,252)
(250)

216,342
2,242
-

(93,918)

218,584

(93,918)

218,584
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Group

Company

21 Cash and cash equivalents
31 Dec 2019
Bank balances
Cash in hand
Cash and cash equivalents in the statements of cash
flows

31 Dec 2019

16,021,454
303

31 Dec 2018
Restated*
10,104,905
614

16,010,705
303

31 Dec 2018
Restated*
10,103,984
614

16,021,757

10,105,519

16,011,008

10,104,598

*See Note 35
22 Share capital
Share capital comprise:
Group
31 Dec 2019

Company

31 Dec 2018

31 Dec 2019

Restated*

31 Dec 2018
Restated*

Authorised share capital:
500,000,000 Ordinary shares of ₦1
each converted @ N197/$1

500,000

500,000

500,000

500,000

500,000

500,000

500,000

500,000

Issued, called-up and paid:
500,000,000 Ordinary shares of ₦1
each converted @ N197/$1

All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Company's residual assets. Holders of ordinary shares are entitled
to dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at general meetings of the Company.
23 Share premium
Share premium represents the excess of amount received over the nominal value of the total issued share capital as at
the reporting date.
There was no change in the balance of share premium from the previous year. Share premium is allotted to the
shareholders in the proportion of their shareholding structure.
24 Translation reserve
Foreign exchange reserve comprises of all foreign currency differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements prepared in the Company's functional currrency (US Dollars) into these financial statements prepared in
the Company's presentation currency (Nigerian Naira).
The movement in this account is as follows:
Group
31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2018
Balance, beginning of the year
Adjustment on initial application of IFRS 9, net of
tax
Additional foreign currency translation difference
Balance, end of the year

Company
31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2018

4,841,992

6,668,471

4,841,000

6,665,865

-

(4,228,565)

-

(4,228,565)

830

2,402,086

1,201

2,403,700

4,842,822

4,841,992

4,842,201

4,841,000

25 Non controlling interest
Non controlling interest represents 0.01% of all subsidiaries, Shiroro Solar Generating Company Limited (SSGC),
North South Gurara Energy Company and NSP-SPV Powercorp Plc. Upon incorporation of these subsidiaries, the
Company acquired 99.99% stake representing 2,499,999 shares out of 2,500,000 shares, 2,499,999 shares out of
2,500,000 shares and 999,999 shares out of 1,000,000 shares respectively. The impact of this is immaterial in the
financial statements.
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26 Deferred taxation
(a) Recognized deferred tax assets and liabilities
Deferred tax assets/ (liabilities) are attributable to the following:
Group/ Company
Assets

Liabilities

31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2018

In thousands of Naira
Property, plant and equipment

31 Dec 2019

31 Dec 2018

31 Dec 2019

31 Dec 2018

-

(53,951)

298,984

(13,717,484) (13,624,550)
19,630,710
(13,717,484)
5,952,209

(13,717,484)
45,450
17,392,704
4,019,654

-

298,984

(53,951)

19,630,710
19,630,710

45,450
17,392,704
17,737,138

(13,624,550)
(13,678,501)

Movement in temporary differences is as follows:
Group/ Company
Opening
balance

Recognized in
PorL

Recognized
in OCI

2018
35,188
(9,601,864)
3,775,077
11,273,943
5,482,344

2018
262,599
(4,043,690)
(3,726,142)
6,035,606
(1,471,627)

2018
1,197
(71,930)
(3,485)
83,155
8,937

Intangible assets
Foreign exchange difference
Concession fees payable

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Foreign exchange difference
Concession fees payable

Net

Closing Recognized in
balance profit or loss
2018
298,984
(13,717,484)
45,450
17,392,704
4,019,654

2019
(33,030)
(227,210)
(45,571)
2,237,863
1,932,052

Translation
adjustment

Closing
balance

2019
(319,905)
320,144
121
143
503

2019
(53,951)
(13,624,550)
19,630,710
5,952,209

The Company has recognized deferred tax assets of ₦5.952 billion (2018: ₦4.02 billion) as the directors believe it is probable that the future taxable profits will
be available against which the Company can use the benefits therefrom.
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27 Loans and borrowings
Loans and borrowings comprise:
Group

Secured bank loan 1 (Note 27(a))
Secured bank loan 2 (Note 27(b))
Secured bond issues (Note 27(c))
Non-current portion
Current portion

31 Dec 2019
8,694,873
8,694,873
(7,213,210)
1,481,663

Company

31 Dec 2018 31 Dec 2019
3,035,002
2,441,878
8,694,873
5,476,880
8,694,873
(2,571,125) (7,213,210)
2,905,755
1,481,663

31 Dec 2018
3,035,002
2,441,878
5,476,880
(2,571,125)
2,905,755

Reconciliation of movement of liabilities balance to cash flows arising from financing activities

Balance at 1 January
Proceeds from loans and borrowings
Transaction costs related to loans and
borrowings
Exchange difference
Interest for the year (Note 11)
Repayments: Principal
Repayments: Interest
Translation Adjustment
Balance as at 31 December

Group
2019
2018
5,257,069
8,860,536
8,500,000
(191,884)
1,032,061
14,597,246
(5,270,269)
(853,153)
221,049
8,694,873

(10,407)
1,052,372
9,902,501
(3,185,583)
(1,258,989)
(200,860)
5,257,069

Company
2019
2018
5,257,069
8,860,536
8,500,000
(191,884)
1,032,061
14,597,246
(5,270,269)
(853,153)
221,049
8,694,873

(10,407)
1,052,372
9,902,501
(3,185,583)
(1,258,989)
(200,860)
5,257,069

(a) Secured bank loan 1
In 2013, the Company obtained a term loan of ₦10.884 billion ($55.25 million) from a bank. According
to the loan agreement, the loan attracts an interest of 18% and has a tenor of 7 years. The facilities are
secured by the shares of the shareholders of the Company and the personal guarantee of the Chairman, a
member of the Directors and some of the shareholders. Effective 1 November 2016, the interest rate on
the loan was revised to 19.25%. Interest and principal are repayable on a quarterly basis. During the year,
the accrued interest on this loan was ₦105.9 million($0.3 million) (2018:₦723.12 million, $2.4 million)
and a repayment of ₦3.14 billion ($10.23 million) was made during the year to fully liquidate the loan.
(b) Secured bank loan 2
In 2013, the Company secured a term loan of $23.7 million from a bank. The loan tenor is 7 years and
interest is computed at Libor plus 6.5%, subject to a floor of 8%. Based on the initial loan agreement, the
interest and principal were repayable on a monthly basis after a moratorium period of 12 months on
principal only. However, in August 2013, the loan was restructured to extend the moratorium period by 6
months on the interest and to make principal and interest repayments on a quarterly basis.
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In 2015, the bank increased the coupon rate floor to 9%. Effective 1 November 2016, the coupon rate was
further revised to 9.25%. During the year, the accrued interest on this loan was ₦24.55million, $0.08
million (2018: ₦428.54, $1.4 million) and a repayment of ₦2.24 billion,$7.3 million was made during the
year to fully liquidate the loan.
(c ) Secured bond issues
On 28 February 2019, the Company through its subsidiary NSP-SPV Powercorp Plc, issued its first ₦8.5
billion, 15 year, 15.60% Series 1 Guaranteed Fixed Rate Senior Green Infrastructure Bonds (“Series 1
Green Bonds”), due 2034 under a ₦50 billion Debt Issuance Programme. The bonds were fully
subscribed and paid for at time of issue. The terms of the bond agreement required the proceeds of the
bond to be transferred to North South Power Company Limited for utilisation as specified in the
agreement As a result, the proceeds from the bonds issue was loaned to the Company under similar terms
and conditions as those agreed with the bond subscribers.
North South Power Company Limited was identified as a co-obligor in the bond agreement and is jointly
liable with its subsidiary, NSP-SPV Powercorp Plc ("the issuer") for the punctual bi-annual repayment of
the principal and interest of the bond obligation.
The facility is secured by a negative pledge over the properties and assets of both North South Power
Company Limited and NSP-SPV Powercorp Plc.
During the year, the total bond facility amount of ₦8.5 billion ( $27.7 million) was drawdown and was
used mainly for the following purposes:
(i) Repayment of the existing loan facilities with the bank amounting to ₦4.43 billion ($17.53 million).
(ii) Establishment of a minimum reserve deposit to cover two instalments of bond repayments and
perfection of the security documents over the tenor of the facility. This minimum reserve comprises
of an amount of ₦1.48 billion ($4.83 million) and ₦102.3 million ($0.33 million) in respect of
deposits in the minimum bond reserve account and minimum perfection account respectively as
required in the Recourse Deed Agreement. These amounts totalling ₦1.58 billion ($5.16 million) are
included as part of Other assets. See Note 19.
(iii) Establishment of a cash deposit to collaterise a bank guarantee issued in favour of Ministry of Water
Resources as one of the requirements for bidding for the Gurara plant ₦239 million ($0.8 million)
(Note 32(d)). Amount is included as part of Other assets. See Note 19.
(iv) To rehabilitate overhead cranes and system control upgrades costing ₦ 80.8 million ($0.3 million).
As at year end, the accrued interest on the bond amounted to ₦1.12 billion ($3.7 million) and the
principal and interest repayment during the year amounted to ₦740.8 million ($2.4 million).
28 Concession fees payable
Concession fees payable represent the annual fees payable to the Bureau of Public Enterprises (BPE) in
accordance with the Concession Agreement for years 6 - 30 of the concession.
The movement on this account was as follows:
Group
31 Dec 2019
Balance at 1 January
Unwinding of discount on annual fees
(Note 11)
Translation adjustment
Non-current portion
Current portion

Company

31 Dec 2018 31 Dec 2019

31 Dec 2018

54,352,201

47,170,818

54,352,201

47,170,818

6,991,952

7,006,629

6,991,952

7,006,629

1,545
174,754
1,545
174,754
61,345,698
54,352,201 61,345,698
54,352,201
(39,607,810) (39,859,959) (39,607,810) (39,859,959)
21,737,888
14,492,242 21,737,888
14,492,242
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Included in the current portion of concession fees payable is ₦ 14.5 billion (2018: ₦7.25 billion) which is
past due (Note 28(a)).
The Concession Agreement states that the Company will be liable to remit an annual fee of
$23,602,484.47 to the BPE beginning from the fifth (5th) anniversary of the concession until the end of
the 30 year concession period. The amount recognised is the present value of the expected future
cashflows discounted using the pre-tax rate of 15%.
(a) Compliance with payment obligations under the concession agreement
Based on the concession agreement, the first and second instalment of the annual concession fee of ₦7.25
billion, $23.6 million under this Concession Agreement, amounting to ₦14.49 billion, $47.2 million fell
due for payment on 1 November 2018 and 2019 respectively but remained unpaid as at 31 December
2019 and up to the date of issue of these financial statements. In addition, royalty fees amounting to ₦ 2.8
billion, $9.14 million (2018: ₦4.8 billion, $15.5 million) (Note 29) remained unpaid as at year end and
up to the date of issue of these financial statements.
The Concession Agreement provides that NSP’s events of default include any breach of any of the
payment obligations imposed on NSP that is not remedied within 15 days after notice from the
counterparties giving reasonable notice of the breach and demanding remedy thereof, provided this has
not arisen from a breach of the concession agreement by the BPE or a Federal Government of Nigeria
(FGN) default. An event of default by NSP can result in any of the counterparties terminating the
Concession Agreement.
The Company is owed $99.1 million for deemed capacity (Note 34(a)) by another government parastatal,
the Nigerian Bulk Electricity Trading Company (NBET). The amount has been outstanding for periods
ranging from ten months to over three years. This is a breach of NBET's payment obligations under the
Power Purchase Agreement with NSP. In the opinion of the Directors and based on legal advice from an
independent solicitor, this constitutes an event of default on the part of the FGN. The Directors are also of
the opinion that since the FGN’s event of default necessitated NSP’s failure to pay the matured
obligations, there has been no NSP event of default based on the terms of the concession agreement and
there is therefore no contractual grounds for BPE to terminate the concession agreement.
29 Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables comprise:
Group
31 Dec 2019
Trade payables
Royalty payable
Due to related parties (Note 29(a))
Accruals
Dividend payable (Note 29 (b))
Statutory deductions
Other payables (Note 29 (c))
Non-current portion
Current portion

338,483
2,807,200
262,259
53,418
4,627,276
134,266
1,260,735
9,483,637
(1,207,837)
8,275,800

Company

31 Dec 2018 31 Dec 2019
Restated*
58,637
4,758,500
188,498
18,113
6,460,201
303,009
1,313,653
13,100,611
(1,260,735)
11,839,876

338,483
2,807,200
297,778
47,898
4,627,276
134,266
1,260,735
9,513,636
(1,207,837)
8,305,799

31 Dec 2018
Restated*
58,637
4,758,500
191,875
18,113
6,460,201
303,009
1,313,653
13,103,988
(1,260,735)
11,843,253

*See Note 35
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(a) Due to related parties comprise:
Group
31 Dec 2019
North South Power Services Limited
NSP-SPV Powercorp Plc
North South Gurara Energy Company

262,259
262,259

Company

31 Dec 2018 31 Dec 2019
188,498
188,498

262,259
35,519
297,778

31 Dec 2018
188,498
921
2,456
191,875

(b) The directors have proposed a dividend of $0.0078/₦1.64 (2018:Nil) per ordinary share of ₦1. This
amounts to a total dividend of $3.9 million, ₦1.4 billion for the year (2018: Nil). As at 31
December 2019, dividend amounting to ₦1.8 billion, $5.97 million was paid, with an outstanding
balance of ₦4.6 billion, $15.07 million as shown below:

Balance, beginning of the year
Dividend declared
Dividend paid
Translation adjustment
Balance, end of the year

Group
Company
31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2018 31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2018
6,460,201
3,819,798
6,460,201
3,819,798
10,000,000
10,000,000
6,460,201
13,819,798
6,460,201
13,819,798
(1,832,312) (7,389,560) (1,832,312)
(7,389,560)
(613)
29,963
(613)
29,963
4,627,276
6,460,201
4,627,276
6,460,201

(c) Other payables represent the net credit balance of assets and liabilities taken over from Shiroro
Hydro Electric Power Plant on 1 November 2013 less accumulated amortisation, which the Group
and/ Company has decided to keep or deal with as it wishes under the concession. The breakdown of
the original amount taken over is as follows:

Inventories

Group
Company
31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2018 31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2018
1,012,133
1,012,133
1,012,133
1,012,133

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade payables

353,247

353,247

353,247

353,247

1,365,380
(352,934)
1,012,446

1,365,380
(352,934)
1,012,446

1,365,380
(352,934)
1,012,446

1,365,380
(352,934)
1,012,446

The movement on this account is as follows:

Balance, beginning of the year
Amortisation
Translation adjustment
Balance, end of the year

Group
Company
31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2018 31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2018
1,313,653
1,388,322
1,313,653
1,388,322
(52,884)
(52,649)
(52,884)
(52,649)
(34)
(22,020)
(34)
(22,020)
1,260,735
1,313,653
1,260,735
1,313,653
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(d) Reconciliation of changes in trade and other payables to statement of cash flows
Group
Company
31 Dec 2019
31 Dec 2018 31 Dec 2019
31 Dec 2018
13,100,611
10,172,664
13,103,988
10,172,664
Balance, beginning of the year
10,000,000
10,000,000
Dividend declared
Dividend paid
(1,832,312)
(7,389,560)
(1,832,312)
(7,389,560)
Translation adjustment
385
51,506
(923)
51,516
Balance end of year
(9,483,637)
(13,100,611)
(9,513,636)
(13,103,988)
Changes in trade and other
payables included in statement of
cash flows
1,785,047
(266,001)
1,757,117
(269,368)

30 Provisions

Balance, beginning of the year
Provisions made during the year
Balance, end of the year

Group
31 Dec 2019
31 Dec 2018
85,714
85,714

Company
31 Dec 2019
31 Dec 2018
85,714
85,714

During the year, there was a suit that was instituted at the Niger State High Court, Minna by the Shiroro
Local Government to claim for purported tenement rate from the Company amounting to ₦ 262.5 million
($855,049). The Board of directors of the Company, based on the legal advice, is of the view that the
Company has no liability for tenement rate to the Shiroro Local Government. However, subsequent to year
end, the Company and Shiroro Local Government had further discussions and agreed the terms of
settlement of ₦ 85.7 million ($279,200) for tenement rates due as at 31 December 2019. The Company
expects to settle the related liability during 2020 financial year.
31 Related party transactions
Parent and ultimate controlling party
The Company is owned by various shareholders and does not have any parent company or ultimate
controlling company.
Other related party transactions
The Company entered into the following transactions with the under listed related parties during the year:
(a) CEC Africa Hydro Investments Limited ("CEC Africa")
CEC Africa Hydro Investments Limited owns 25.60% of the Company's shares and provided financial
support (loan) to the Company in prior years. During the year, the Company engaged the services of
CECAfrica Hydro Investment Limited as one of the ambassadors to drive the eligible customer
initiative in selected states of the Federation. The total expense incurred during the year with respect
of to the service is $0.9 million, ₦266 million. The Company paid $0.9 million, ₦266 million (2018:
Nil) during the year. No amount was due to CECAfrica Hydro Investment Limited as at year end
(2018: Nil).

59

North South Power Company Limited
Annual Report
31 December 2019

Notes to the financial statements
(b ) Shiroro Solar Generating Company Limited (SSGC)
Shiroro Solar Generating Company Limited was incorporated in Nigeria in 2015 and is owned 99.99%
by the Company. SSGC is yet to commence operations but was incorporated to provide power/ energy
services, supply, install and maintain renewable energy systems.
In 2017, the Company was issued the license to operate the Shiroro solar plant and as at year end, the
Company had incurred ₦148.12 million (2018: ₦102.2 million) on behalf of SSGC and the
Company's indebtedness to SSGC in respect of the latter's called-up share capital is nil (2018: ₦2.5
million).
(c ) North South Gurara Energy Company Limited (NSGEC)
North South Gurara Energy Company Limited was incorporated in Nigeria on the 25 July 2018 and
is owned 99.99% by the Company. NSGEC is yet to commence operations but was incorporated to
provide power/ energy services, supply, install and maintain renewable energy systems.
As at year end, the Company had incurred ₦56.2 million (2018: ₦33.5 million) on behalf of NSGEC
and the Company's indebtedness to NSGEC in respect of the latter's called-up share capital is nil
(2018: ₦ 2.5 million).
(d ) NSP-SPV Powercorp Plc (NSP-SPVP)
NSP-SPV Powercorp Plc was incorporated in Nigeria in 2017 and is owned 99.99% by the Company.
NSP-SPVP was incorporated to raise capital from the Nigerian capital market or other international
market, issue and invest in bonds, notes, shares, stocks, debentures, debenture stocks, annuities or
other securities issued, sold or sponsored by North South Power Company Limited or any other
company or body, within or outside Nigeria, for itself or on behalf of any person(s). As at year end,
the Company had incurred expenses amounting ₦10.6 million (2018: ₦0.31 million) on behalf of NSPSPVP with respect to the bond issuance project.
During the year, on 19 May 2019, the Company signed a Service Line Agreement (SLA) with NSPSPV. The terms of the SLA provide that NSP-SPV shall issue bonds as stated in the Series 1 Trust
Deed and transfer the proceeds of such bonds to the Company. NSP-SPV shall not be responsible for
the repayment and administration of the bonds as such remains the responsibility of the Company. The
SLA requires the Company to pay management fees to NSP-SPV for the services provided to the
Company. Management fee is calculated as 3% of the interest expenses incured on the bond
(including all related costs, commissions, charges, fees, or such other payments or deductions as may
be required under the applicable law), paid by the Company to the bondholders on the relevant
payment date. The amount charged to profit or loss with respect to the management fees amounted to
₦35.5 million (2018: Nil) which remained unpaid as at year end. See Note 10 and Note 29(a) to these
financial statements.
On 28 February 2019, the Company through NSP-SPVP, issued its first N8.5 billion /15 year/ 15.60%
Series 1 Guaranteed Fixed Rate Senior Green Infrastructure Bonds (“Series 1 Green Bonds”), due
2034 under a N50 billion Debt Issuance Programme. The Series 1 Green Bonds is the first certified
green corporate bond and the longest tenured (15 years) corporate bond issued in the Nigeria debt
capital markets. The bonds were issued by NSP-SPV and were subsequently loaned to the Company
with similar terms and conditions agreed with the bond subscribers in the bond agreements. The
Company's indebtedness to NSP-SPVP in respect of the transferred bond proceeds as at year end was
$28.3 million (2018: Nil). See Note 27 to these financial statements.
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(e) North South Power Services Limited (NSPSL)
North South Power Services Limited was incorporated in Mauritius in 2015 and has some common
shareholders with the Company. Although the Company has no shares in nor control over NSPSL, it
had entered into an agreement with NSPSL for the provision of development, management operations
and maintenance services in respect of the Shiroro Hydroelectric Power Plant known as the
Management Services Agreement ("MSA"). However, on 16 February 2017, the board of NSPSL
Mauritius passed a resolution to incorporate a new company - North South Power Services Limited
(NSPSL Nigeria) to which it transferred all its assets and businesses, including the MSA.
Subsequently, on 31 August 2017, NSPSL Nigeria was incorporated and on 5 September 2017, all
businesses and contracts entered into on its behalf were ratified. With these events, the assets,
liabilities, rights and obligations of NSPSL Mauritius under the MSA were effectively transferred to
NSPSL Nigeria as at 31 December 2017.
As such, payments for the services provided under the MSA (which is a fee of 2.5% of the total
revenue for each year) are now due to NSPSL Nigeria. Total services provided during the year
amounted to ₦743.8 million (2018: ₦648 million) and balance as at year end was ₦264.02 million
(2018: ₦298.66 million).
(f) Ratio Legal Practitioners
Ratio Legal Practitioners is related to the Company through a Director; George Nwangwu who
exercises significant influence over both the Company and Ratio Legal Practitioners. Ratio Legal
Practitioners provided legal services to the Company during the year. The total expenses incurred
during the year with respect to the services provided by Ratio Legal Practitioners was ₦86.16 million
(2018: ₦86.16 million). The Company paid ₦86.16 million (2018: ₦86.16 million) during the year.
No amount was due to Ratio Legal Practitioners as at year end (2018: Nil).

(g) Puma Engineering Limited
Puma Engineering Limited owns 1.46% shares of the Company. During the year, the Company
engaged the services of Puma Engineering Limited as one of the ambassadors to drive the eligible
customer initiative in selected states of the Federation. The total expense incurred during the year with
respect to the service is ₦24.6 million,$80,130 (2018:Nil). The Company paid ₦24.6
million,$80,130 (2018:Nil) during the year. No amount was due to Puma Engineering Limited as at
year end (2018: Nil).
(h) Urban Shelter Limited
Urban Shelter Limited owns 23.63% shares of the Company. During the year, the Company engaged
the services of Urban Shelter Limited as one of the ambassadors to drive the eligible customer
initiative in selected states of the Federation. The total expense incurred during the year with respect
of to the service is $0.9 million, ₦266 million (2018: Nil). The Company paid $0.9 million,₦266
million (2018: Nil) during the year. No amount was due to Urban Shelter Limited as at year end
(2018: Nil).
(i) BP Investment Limited
BP Investment Limited owns 19.98% shares of the Company. During the year, the Company engaged
the services of BP Investment Limited and two of its other representatives Crown reflexion Ltd and
Pavebay Company Nig. Ltd as one of the ambassadors to drive the eligible customer initiative in
selected states of the Federation. The total expense incurred during the year with respect of to the
service is ₦264.6 million, $862,030. The Company paid ₦264.6 million, $862,030 (2018: Nil )
during the year. No amount was due to BP Investment Limited as at year end (2018: Nil).
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(j) Pan-African Global infrastructure Co
Pan-African Global infrastructure Co owns 25.6% shares of the Company. During the year, the
Company engaged the services of Pan-African Global infrastructure Co as one of the ambassadors to
drive the eligible customer initiative in selected states of the Federation. The total expense incurred
during the year with respect to the service is ₦105.8 million, $344,625. The Company paid ₦105.8
million, $344,625 (2018:Nil) during the year. No amount was due to Pan-African Global
infrastructure Co as at year end (2018: Nil).
(k) Opec Investment Inc.
Opec Investment Inc. owns 3.65% shares of the Company. During the year, the Company engaged the
services of Opec Investment Inc. as one of the ambassadors to drive the eligible customer initiative in
selected states of the Federation. The total expense incurred during the year with respect to the service
is ₦36.5 million, $118,912. The Company paid ₦36.5 million,$118,912 (2018: Nil) during the year.
No amount was due to Opec Investment Inc. as at year end (2018: Nil).
(l) Roads Nigeria Limited
Roads Nigeria Limited owns 3.65% shares of the Company. During the year, the Company engaged
the services of Roads Nigeria Limited through its represntatives Jimoh Dansu as one of the
ambassadors to drive the eligible customer initiative in selected states of the Federation. The total
expense incurred during the year with respect to the service is ₦36.5 million, $118,912. The
Company paid ₦36.5 million,$118,912 (2018: Nil) during the year. No amount was due to Opec
Investment Inc. as at year end (2018: Nil).
Transactions with key management personnel
Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing
and controlling the activities of the Company, directly or indirectly, including any director of the Company.
In addition to the directors, key management personnel includes all senior management personnel of the
Company such as the General Managers, Chief Operating and Technical Officers.
Key management personnel compensation
Key management personnel compensation comprised the following:
In thousands of Naira
Short term benefits

Group
2019
989,817

2018
1,095,376

Company
2019
989,817

2018
1,095,376

Included in the key management personnel compensation is the Board of Director's fees of ₦731. 9 million
(2018: ₦700.97 million).
Loans to key management personnel
The Group and/ Company did not grant any loans to or receive any loans from any key management
personnel.
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32 Contingencies
(a) Financial commitments
The Directors are of the opinion that all significant liabilities and commitments, which are relevant in
assessing the state of affairs of the Group and/ Company, have been taken into consideration in the
preparation of these financial statements.
(b) Claims and litigation
The Group and/or Company are subject to various claims as at 31 December 2019 amounting to
₦266.2 million,$867,171(2018:₦3.7 million,$12,122) which arose in the normal course of
business.The Directors based on a review of the circumstances of each claim and advice of the Group
and/or Company's solicitor have made a provision of ₦85.71 million, $279,199 (Note 30) and for the
claims assessed as probable.No provisions or contingent liability disclosures are required with respect
to the other items.
(d) Bonds and Guarantees
The Group and/or Company had guarantees amounting to ₦239 million issued by a Nigerian
commercial bank in favour of Federal Ministry of Water Resources as one of the requirements for
bidding for the Gurara Plant. In addition, the Group and/or Company obtained other bank guarantees
in favour of its suppliers for the importation of various plant alterations items during the year (Note
19). The directors do not expect any significant loss to arise from these guarantees.
33 Events after the end of the reporting date
On 11 March 2020, the World Health Organization declared the coronavirus (COVID – 19) outbreak a
pandemic and most governments have taken restrictive measures to contain its further spread by
introducing lockdowns, closures of borders and travel restrictions which has affected the free movement of
people and goods. The Nigerian Centre for Disease Control (NCDC) has confirmed COVID -19 cases in
Nigeria and this has resulted in lock down in certain states. The pandemic has caused a significant
reduction in social interactions, disruption in economic activities while some public facilities have been
shut down in a bid to reduce the spread of the virus.
The Group and/or Company consider this outbreak to be a non-adjusting subsequent event. As the situation
is fluid and rapidly evolving, the Directors do not consider it practicable to provide a quantitative estimate
of the potential impact of this outbreak and will continue to evaluate the impact of COVID-19 on the
Group/Company’s operations, financial position and operating results. As at the date these financial
statements were authorised for issue, the Directors were not aware of any material adverse effects on the
financial statements as a result of the COVID-19 outbreak.
There are no other events after the reporting date which could have had a material effect on the state of
affairs of the Group and/or Company's as at 31 December 2019 and on the profit for the year ended which
has not been adequately recognised or disclosed in these financial statements.
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34 Financial instruments
Financial risk management overview
The Group and/ Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:
• credit risk
• liquidity risk
• market risk
This note represents information about the Group and/ Company's exposure to each of the above risks, the
Group and/ Company's objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Group
and/ Company's management of capital. Further quantitative disclosures are included throughout these
financial statements.
Risk management framework
The Group and/ Company's Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and
oversight of the Group and/ Company's risk management framework.
The risk management policies have been developed to identify and analyse risks faced by the Group and/
Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk
management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the
Group and/ Company's activities. The Group and/ Company, through its training and management
standards and procedures, has a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all it's
employees understand their roles and obligations.

(a) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group and/ Company if a customer or counterparty to a
financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Group
and/ Company's receivables from customers.
Trade and other receivables
The Group and/Company's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual
characteristics of each distribution company and the ability of the Nigerian Bulk Electricity Trading
Plc (NBET) to regulate and enforce payments by both local and international distribution companies.
Impairment loss on trade receivables recognised in profit or loss as at year end is ₦8.25 billion (2018:
₦3.44 billion)
Expected credit loss assessment for customers
The Group and/ Company uses an allowance matrix to measure the ECLs of trade receivables from its
customers. Loss rates are calculated using the default method and are calculated separately for exposures
in different segments based on their common credit risk characteristics.
The Company applied relevant weighted average loss rates on trade receivables as at year end based on
respective trade receivable categories with different credit risk characteristics.
Loss rates are based on actual credit loss experience over the past three years using lifetime expected credit
losses approach.
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Impairment of receivables
The Company has adopted the use of simplified approach in computing impairment of trade receivables
using the provision matrix method since the Company's trade receivables have no significant financing
element.
In arriving at the impairment amounts, the trade receivables are segmented based on their credit risk
characteristics and the applicable loss rates are applied to the respective trade receivables category.
To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables and contract assets have been grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due. The historical loss rates are adjusted to
reflect current and forward looking information on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the
customers to settle the receivables. The group has identified the GDP of Nigeria in which it sells its goods
and services to be the most relevant factors, and accordingly have considered the historical loss rates
based on expected changes in these factors in arriving at the impairment loss. The methodology for the
calculation of the ECL is consistent with the comparative period.
Using 5-7 years data of the GDP of Nigeria, the Nigerian economy has been classified into three broad
economic cycles – Good, Bad and Normal. Presently, the Nigerian economy has been in a bad economic
cycle (between 2016 and 2018) with GDP growth rate at less than 2%. As at 31 December 2019, the
relevant 9 months GDP rate was 1.8% and from review of published expectations the GDP most recent
forecast has been reduced to 1.9% due to disruptions on economic and investment activities during an
election year. Based on the forecast for 2020 GDP growth, it is expected that the current economic cycle
will continue (i.e. bad economic cycle). Thus, the application of the average historical loss rates for this
economic cycle (2016-2019) in the calculation of the 2019 impairment loss. The impact of forward-looking
information has been considered in the average loss rates calculated in a bad economic cycle. No
additional forward-looking adjustment is therefore required in applying this approach.
The credit risk characteristic of NSP’s receivables are segmented as follows:
•

Receivables from Deemed capacity

•
•

Receivables from revenue invoices covering period prior to the Payment Assurance Guarantee (PAG)
regime
Receivables representing 80% of revenue invoices covering period under PAG

•
•

Receivables representing 20% of revenue invoices covering period under PAG
Receivables representing 100% of revenue invoices covering period under NBET-PAF-XP facility

•

Current receivables which are still within the credit period
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In thousands of Naira

Trade Receivable Categories
Receivables from Deemed
capacity

Weighted 3
average loss 0
rate D
100%

Gross
Carrying
amount

Loss
Credit impaired
allowance

30,433,659

30,433,659

Yes

6,839,256

1,122,694

No

Receivables from revenue
invoices covering period prior to
the Payment Assurance
Guarantee (PAG) regime

16%

Receivables representing 80% of
revenue invoices covering period
under PAG

16%

4,321,574

709,406

No

Receivables representing 20% of
revenue invoices covering period
under PAG

100%

11,650,865

11,650,864

Yes

16%

15,225,702

2,499,367

No

0%

6,576,128

-

No

75,047,182

46,415,990

Receivables representing 100%
of revenue invoices covering
period under NBET-PAF-XP
facility
Current receivables which are
still within the credit period

Movements in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables.
The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables during the year was as
follows:
Group
Company
2019
2018
2019
2018
Balance at 1 January
Impairment loss recognised
Translation adjustment
Balance at 31 December

38,159,793
8,254,030
2,167
46,415,990

16,035,656
20,157,297
1,966,840
38,159,793

38,159,793
8,254,030
2,167
46,415,990

16,035,656
20,157,297
1,966,840
38,159,793

Cash and cash equivalents
The Group and/ Company held cash and cash equivalents of ₦16.06 million as at year end (2018:₦10.36
billion), which represents its maximum credit exposure on these assets. Impairments on cash and cash
equivalent has been measured on a 12 month expected loss basis and effects the short term maturities of
the exposures. The Company considers that its cash and cash equivalents have low credit risk based on the
external credit ratings of the counterparties and their ability to meet the cash and liquidity thresholds set by
the Central Bank of Nigeria. The Company did not recognise any impairment on its cash and cash
equivalents.
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(b) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group and/or Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by
delivering cash or another financial asset. The Group and/ Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to
meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation.
The Group and/ Company has a clear focus on ensuring sufficient access to capital to finance growth. As part of the liquidity management process, the Group and/or
Company has various credit arrangements with its bankers which can be utilised to meet its liquidity requirements.
The Group and/or Company aims to maintain the level of its cash and cash equivalents at an amount in excess of expected cash outflows on financial liabilities (other than
concession fees payable) over the next 60 days. The Group and/or Company also monitors the level of expected cash inflows on trade and other receivables together with
expected cash outflows on trade and other payables.
Exposure to liquidity risk
The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted and include contractual interest
payments and exclude the impact of netting agreements.
Group
Carrying
amount
At 31 December 2019
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Loans and borrowings
Trade and other payables*
Concession fees payable

8,694,873
8,088,636
61,345,698
78,129,207

At 31 December 2018
Loans and borrowings
Trade and other payables*
Concession fees payable

5,476,880
11,483,949
54,352,201
71,313,030

---------------------------------- Contractual cash flows ---------------------------------2 months
2-12
1 year
2 year
More than
Total
or less
months
to 2 years
to 5 years
5 years

(21,484,121)
(8,088,636)
(181,149,068)

(740,832) (2,963,327)
(740,832)
(8,088,636)
- (21,737,888) (14,491,925)

(5,926,654) (11,112,476)
(28,983,851) (115,935,404)

(210,721,825)

(8,829,468) (22,478,720) (17,455,252)

(34,910,505) (127,047,880)

(5,925,714) (2,371,268) (3,554,446)
(11,487,326) (11,487,326)
- (14,491,925) (14,491,935)
(181,149,068)

(28,983,851) (137,673,282)

(198,562,108) (13,858,594) (18,046,371) (14,491,935)

(28,983,851) (137,673,282)

*excludes keep or deal items recognised in other payables, and statutory deductions per Note 29.
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Company
Carrying
amount
At 31 December 2019
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Loans and borrowings
Trade and other payables*
Concession fees payable

At 31 December 2018
Loans and borrowings
Trade and other payables*
Concession fees payable

---------------------------------- Contractual cash flows ---------------------------------2 months
2-12
1 year
2 year
More than
Total
or less
months
to 2 years
to 5 years
5 years

8,694,873
8,118,635
61,345,698

(21,484,121)
(8,118,635)
(181,149,068)

(740,832) (2,963,327)
(740,832)
(8,118,635)
- (21,737,888) (14,491,925)

(5,926,654) (11,112,476)
(28,983,851) (115,935,404)

78,159,206

(210,751,824)

(8,859,467) (22,478,720) (17,455,252)

(34,910,505) (127,047,880)

5,476,880
11,487,326
54,352,201

5,925,714
11,487,326
181,149,068

2,371,268
3,554,446
11,487,326
- (14,491,925)

14,491,935

(28,983,851)

71,316,407

198,562,108

13,858,594 (10,937,479)

14,491,935

(28,983,851)

195,640,984
195,640,984

*excludes keep or deal items recognised in other payables, and statutory deductions per Note 29.
(c) Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices, will affect the Group and/ Company’s income or the
value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while
optimising the return.
The Group and/ Company manages market risks by keeping costs low through various cost optimization programs. Moreover, market developments are monitored and
discussed regularly, and mitigating actions are taken where necessary.
Currency risk
The Group and/ Company is exposed to currency risk on purchases that are denominated in a currency other than the functional currency, the US Dollar. The currency in
which these transactions primarily are denominated is the Naira (₦). The currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate due to the changes in foreign exchange rates.
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Exposure to currency risk
The summary quantitative data about the Group's exposure to currency risk as reported to the management of
the Group/ Company is as follows:
31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2018
₦'000
₦'000

Group
Financial asset
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables*
Financial liability
Loans and borrowings
Trade and other payables
Net statement of financial position exposure

8,489,395
3,467,513

8,037,874
4,791,652

(8,694,873)
(1,490,620)
1,771,415

(3,035,002)
(11,314,792)
(1,520,268)

31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2018
₦'000
₦'000

Company
Financial asset
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Financial liability
Loans and borrowings
Trade and other payables
Net statement of financial position exposure

8,479,007
3,685,483

8,036,953
4,791,652

(8,694,873)
(4,886,360)
(1,416,743)

(3,035,002)
(11,314,792)
(1,521,189)

The following significant exchange rates were applied during the year:
Average rate
Year end spot rate
31 Dec 2019
31 Dec 2018 31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2018
N

306.92

N

N

N

306.08

307

307

Sensitivity analysis
A strengthening of the Dollar, as indicated below against the Naira at 31 December would have increased/
(decreased) loss for the year and equity by the amounts shown below. This analysis is based on foreign
currency exchange rate variances that the Group and/ Company considered to be reasonably possible at the
end of the reporting period and has no impact on equity.
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Sensitivity analysis
The analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant.
Decrease in profit or loss and equity
Group

Company

31 December 2019
Nigerian Naira (20% strengthening)

(404)

(541)

31 December 2018
Nigerian Naira (20% strengthening)

(1,697)

(1,741)

A weakening of the Dollar against the Naira at 31 December would have had the equal but opposite effect on equity
and on the above Dollar to the amounts shown above, on the basis that all other variables remain constant.
Interest rate risk profile
In managing interest rate risk, the Group and/ Company aims to reduce the impact of short-term fluctuations in
earnings.
Exposure to interest rate risk
At the reporting date, the interest rate profile of the Group and/ Company’s interest-bearing financial instruments is
as follows:
Carrying amount

In thousands of Naira

Group
31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2018
Fixed-rate instruments
Financial liabilities
Variable-rate instruments
Financial liabilities

Company
31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2018

8,694,873

3,035,002

8,694,873

3,035,002

-

2,441,878

-

2,441,878

The Group and/Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss. Therefore, a change in interest rates at the reporting date would not affect profit or loss.
Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variabe-rate instruments
A reasonably possible change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased/
(decreased) equity and loss for the year by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables,
in particular foreign currency exchange rates, remain constant.
Group/ Company
Profit or loss
100 bp
100 bp
increase
decrease
31 December 2019
Variable rate instruments
Cash flow sensitivity

-

-

31 December 2018
Variable rate instruments
Cash flow sensitivity

(24,419)
(24,419)

24,419
24,419

Equity, net of tax
100 bp
100 bp
increase
decrease

-

-

(24,419)
(24,419)

24,419
24,419

-
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(d) Capital risk management
The Board’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market
confidence and to sustain future development of the business. Management monitors the return on capital, using
a ratio of "adjusted net debt" to "capital employed". For this purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as total
liabilities less cash and cash equivalents. Capital employed is also defined as adjusted net debt less total equity.
Management also monitors the level of dividends to all shareholders.
The Group and/ Company's adjusted net debt to capital employed ratio at the end of the year was as follows:
Group
31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2018
Total liabilities
Less: Cash and cash equivalents
Net debt
Total equity
Total capital
employed
Net debt to capital
employed ratio

84,849,491

73,136,449

Company
31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2018
84,871,927

(16,021,757) (10,105,519) (16,011,008)
68,827,734
63,030,930
68,860,919
(15,595,379) (8,299,702) (15,781,595)

73,139,826
(10,104,598)
63,035,228
(8,439,080)

53,232,355

54,731,228

53,079,324

54,596,148

77%

87%

77%

87%

As at year end, the ratio of equity to total capital was as follows:

Equity
Senior debt
Total capital
Ratio of equity to total capital

Company
31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2018
15,781,595
8,439,080
8,694,873
5,476,880
24,476,468

13,915,960

64%

61%

There were no significant changes in the Group and/or Company’s approach to capital management during the
year.

71

North South Power Company Limited
Annual Report
31 December 2019

Notes to the financial statements
In thousands of Naira
(e) Fair values
Fair values versus carrying amounts
The following table shows the carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities. It does not
include fair value information as the carrying amounts of these financial assets and financial liabilities not
measured at fair value are reasonable approximations of their fair values.
Group

Note

Financial assets
at amortised
cost

Other financial
liabilities

Total
Carrying
Amount

31 December 2019
Financial assets
Trade & other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

18
21

29,861,869
16,021,757
45,883,626

-

29,861,869
16,021,757
45,883,626

Financial liabilities
Loans and borrowings
Trade and other payables**
Concession fees payable

27
29
28

-

8,694,873
8,088,636
61,345,698
78,129,207

8,694,873
8,088,636
61,345,698
78,129,207

Financial assets
at amortised
cost

Other financial
liabilities

Total
Carrying
Amount

31 December 2018
Financial assets
Trade & other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents*

18
21

30,073,862
10,105,519
40,179,381

-

30,073,862
10,105,519
40,179,381

Financial liabilities
Loans and borrowings
Trade and other payables**
Concession fees payable

27
29
28

-

5,257,068
11,487,326
54,352,201
71,096,595

5,257,068
11,487,326
54,352,201
71,096,595

* See Note 35
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Company
Financial assets
at amortised
cost

Other financial
liabilities

Total
Carrying
Amount

31 December 2019
Financial assets
Trade & other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

18
21

30,073,862
16,011,008
46,084,870

-

30,073,862
16,011,008
46,084,870

Financial liabilities
Loans and borrowings
Trade and other payables**
Concession fees payable

27
29
28

-

8,694,873
8,118,635
61,345,698
78,159,206

8,694,873
8,118,635
61,345,698
78,159,206

Financial assets
at amortised

Other financial
liabilities

Total
Carrying

31 December 2018
Financial assets
Trade & other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents*

18
21

20,056,310
10,104,598
30,160,908

-

20,056,310
10,104,598
30,160,908

Financial liabilities
Loans and borrowings
Trade and other payables**
Concession fees payable

27
29
28

-

5,257,069
11,487,326
54,352,201
71,096,596

5,257,069
11,487,326
54,352,201
71,096,596

* See Note 35
** excludes keep or deal items recognised in other payables, and statutory deductions per Note 29.
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35 Reclassification adjustment
(a) During the year, the Company noted that restricted cash balance had been included as part of cash and cash
equivalents in the 2018 financial statements. These restricted cash balances are not available for use in the Company’s
day-to-day operations. This has been corrected by reclassifying the restricted cash balance to other assets as shown
below.
(b) During the year, the Company also noted that it had erroneously classified the payable relating to "keep or deal"
transactions as current liabilities, rather than splitting between current and non-current portions in its consolidated and
separate statements of financial position since 2013 financial statements. This has been corrected by reclassifying the
non-current portion of the other payables from the current portion as shown below.
The above reclassifications do not have any impact on the consolidated and separate statements of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income and consolidated and separate statements of changes in equity.The following tables
summarise the impacts on the consolidated and separate financial statements:
(i)

Consolidated and separate statements of financial position
Group
1 January 2018
Notes
Total assets
Others
Total equity

Impact of reclassification
As previously
reported Reclassification
As restated
₦'000
₦'000
₦'000
100,228,604
100,228,604
34,018,897
34,018,897

-

34,018,897
34,018,897

Trade and other payables
Others
Total non-current liabilities

b

45,905,814
45,905,814

1,309,374
1,309,374

1,309,374
45,905,814
47,215,188

Trade and other payables
Others
Total current liabilities

b

10,172,664
10,131,229
20,303,893

(1,309,374)
(1,309,374)

8,863,290
10,131,229
18,994,519

66,209,707

-

66,209,707

100,228,604

-

100,228,604

Total liabilities
Total equity and liabilities
Group
31 December 2018

Impact of reclassification
Notes

As previously
reported
₦'000
49,815,458

Total non-current assets

Reclassification
₦'000
-

As restated

10,105,519

₦'000
49,815,458

Cash and cash equivalents

a

10,359,408

Other assets

a

-

(253,889)
253,889

Total current assets

21,261,285
31,620,693

-

Total assets

81,436,151

-

81,436,151

Total equity

8,299,702

-

8,299,702

Others

253,889
21,261,285
31,620,693
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Non-current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Others
Total non-current liabilities

b

42,431,084
42,431,084

1,260,849
1,260,849

1,260,849
42,431,084
43,691,933

b

13,100,611
17,604,754

(1,260,849)
-

11,839,762
17,604,754

Total current liabilities

30,705,365

(1,260,849)

29,444,516

Total liabilities
Total equity and liabilities

73,136,449
81,436,151

-

73,136,449
81,436,151

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Others

-

1 January 2018 - Company

Notes
Total assets
Total equity

Impact of reclassification
As previously
reported Reclassification
As restated
₦'000
₦'000
₦'000
100,331,472
100,331,472

34,121,765

-

34,121,765

Trade and other payables
Others
Total non-current liabilities

b

45,905,814
45,905,814

1,309,374
1,309,374

1,309,374
45,905,814
47,215,188

Trade and other payables
Others

b

10,172,664
10,131,229

(1,309,374)
-

8,863,290
10,131,229

Total current liabilities

20,303,893

(1,309,374)

18,994,519

Total liabilities

66,209,707

-

66,209,707

100,331,472

-

100,331,472

Total equity and liabilities
Company
31 December 2018

Notes
Total non-current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Other assets
Others
Total current assets
Total assets

a
a

Others
Total equity
Non-current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Others
Total non-current liabilities

b

Impact of reclassification
As previously
reported Reclassification
As restated
₦'000
₦'000
₦'000
49,822,826
49,822,826
10,358,487
21,397,593
31,756,080
81,578,906

(253,889)
253,889
-

10,104,598
253,889
21,397,593
31,756,080
81,578,906

8,439,080
8,439,080

-

8,439,080
8,439,080

42,431,084
42,431,084

1,260,849
1,260,849

1,260,849
42,431,084
43,691,933
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Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Others

13,103,988
17,604,754

(1,260,849)
-

11,843,139
17,604,754

Total current liabilities

30,708,742

(1,260,849)

29,447,893

Total liabilities

73,139,826
81,578,906

-

73,139,826
81,578,906

b

Total equity and liabilities
(ii) Consolidated and separate statements of cash flows
Group
31 December 2018
Note
Notes
Cash flows from operating activities
Loss for the year
Adjustment for:
Others
Changes in:
Other assets
Others
Net cash generated from operating activities
Net cash used in investing activities
Net cash used in financing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash as at 1 January
Effect of movement in exchange rates on cash held
Cash and cash equivalent as at 31 December

a

Impact of reclassification
As previously
reported Reclassification
As previously
As restated
₦'000
₦'000
₦'000
(5,419,544)

-

(5,419,544)

35,518,692

-

35,518,692

30,099,148

-

30,099,148

(7,729,332)

(253,889)
-

(253,889)
(7,729,332)

22,369,816
(1,027,272)
(11,920,758)
9,421,786
1,757,664
(820,042)
10,359,408

(253,889)
-

22,115,927
(1,027,272)
(11,920,758)
9,167,897
1,757,664
(820,042)

(253,889)
(253,889)

10,105,519

Company
31 December 2018
Impact of reclassification
Notes
Cash flows from operating activities
Loss for the year
Adjustment for:
Others
Changes in:
Other assets
Others
Net cash generated from operating activities
Net cash used in investing activities
Net cash used in financing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash as at 1 January
Effect of movement in exchange rates on cash held
Cash and cash equivalent as at 31 December

a

As previously
reported

As restated

₦'000

Reclassification
₦'000

(5,384,648)

-

(5,384,648)

35,518,382

-

35,518,382

30,133,734

-

30,133,734

(7,763,003)

(253,889)

(253,889)

22,370,731
(1,027,272)
(11,920,758)
9,422,701
1,755,828
(820,042)
10,358,487

(253,889)
-

22,116,842
(1,027,272)
(11,920,758)
9,168,812
1,755,828
(820,042)

(253,889)
(253,889)

₦'000

10,104,598
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Value Added Statement
In thousands of Naira
For the year ended 31 December 2019

2019

Group
%

2018

%

2019

Company
%

2018

%

38,790,174

37,674,175

38,790,174

37,674,175

Bought in materials and services:
(31,364,509)
- Local
(958,309)
- Foreign
(32,322,818)

(38,398,189)
(874,221)
(39,272,410)

(31,305,418)
(958,309)
(32,263,727)

(38,363,600)
(874,221)
(39,237,821)

Other income

1,862,208

290,795

1,857,386

290,795

Value added

8,329,564

100

(2,990,684)

100

8,383,833

100

(2,956,095)

100

(4,905,127)

(58)

(3,346,328)

112

(4,897,324)

(58)

(3,346,328)

114

To Employee:
- Salaries and wages

2,881,770

35

2,699,190

(91)

2,881,770

34

2,698,883

(92)

To providers of capital:
- Interest expenses

1,032,061

12

1,138,998

(38)

1,032,061

12

1,138,998

(39)

99,176
(3)
1,837,824 (62)

Revenue

Distribution of value added
To Government :
- Income tax and royalties

Retained in the business:
Depreciation
Amortisation
To augument/(deplete)
reserves

125,946
1,900,067

2
23

99,176
1,837,824

(3)
(61)

125,946
1,900,067

2
23

7,294,847

88

(5,419,544)

181

7,341,314

88

(5,384,648)

182

Value added

8,329,564

102

(2,990,684)

100

8,383,833

101

(2,956,095)

100
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Company
Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

2019

2018
Restated*

2017
Restated*

2016
Restated*

2015
Restated*

Revenue

38,790,174

37,674,175

33,131,460

28,037,849

11,989,585

Operating Profits
Profit/(loss) for the year
Total comprehensive
income for the year

18,467,129
7,341,314

8,051,042
(5,384,648)

17,807,330
9,425,342

20,473,752
9,877,838

7,361,313
(285,843)

7,342,515

(2,980,948)

14,449,279

13,453,589

(271,296)

31 Dec 2019

31 Dec 2018
Restated*

31 Dec 2017
Restated*

31 Dec 2016
Restated*

31 Dec 2015
Restated*

52,801,121
49,822,826
47,852,401
31,756,080
(48,028,857) (43,691,933)
(36,843,070) (29,447,893)
15,781,595
8,439,080

59,534,634
40,796,838
(45,905,814)
(20,303,893)
34,121,765

51,077,731
36,020,500
(51,127,760)
(7,617,985)
28,352,486

31,229,356
17,000,281
(33,207,107)
(6,703,533)
8,318,997

500,000
8,133,191
18,822,709
6,665,865
34,121,765

500,000
8,133,191
13,139,395
6,579,900
28,352,486

500,000
8,133,191
(314,194)
8,318,997

Statement of financial position

Employment of Funds
Non-current assets
Current assets
Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities
Funds Employed
Share capital
Share Premium
Retained earnings
Translation reserve

500,000
8,133,191
2,306,203
4,842,201
15,781,595

500,000
8,133,191
(5,035,111)
4,841,000
8,439,080
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Group
Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
2018
2017
2019
Restated*
Restated*
38,790,174
37,674,175
33,131,460
Revenue

2016
Restated*
28,037,849

2015
Restated*
11,989,585

18,424,069
10,712,401

8,016,146
(5,419,544)

17,807,330
9,425,342

20,473,752
9,877,838

7,361,313
(285,843)

7,295,677

(3,017,458)

14,363,314

13,453,589

(271,296)

31 Dec 2019

31 Dec 2018
Restated*

31 Dec 2017
Restated*

31 Dec 2016
Restated*

31 Dec 2015
Restated*

52,793,713
49,815,458
47,651,157
31,620,693
(48,028,857) (43,691,933)
(36,820,634) (29,444,516)
15,595,379
8,299,702

59,534,634
40,796,838
(47,215,188)
(18,994,519)
34,121,765

51,075,231
35,937,845
(51,127,760)
(7,617,985)
28,267,331

31,226,856
16,939,345
(33,207,107)
(6,703,533)
8,255,561

Operating Profits
Profit/(loss) for the year
Total comprehensive
income for the year

Statement of financial position

Employment of Funds
Non-current assets
Current assets
Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities
Funds Employed
Share capital
Share Premium
Retained earnings
Translation reserve

500,000
8,133,191
2,119,366
4,842,822

500,000
8,133,191
(5,175,481)
4,841,992

500,000
8,133,191
18,822,709
6,665,865

500,000
8,133,191
13,051,652
6,582,488

500,000
8,133,191
(377,630)
-

15,595,379

8,299,702

34,121,765

28,267,331

8,255,561
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